ED 409 806	HE 030 338
AUTHOR TITLE INSTITUTION PUB DATE NOTE	Christal, Melodie E. State Tuition and Fee Policies: 1996-97. State Higher Education Executive Officers Association. Mar 97 75p.
AVAILABLE FROM	State Higher Education Executive Officers, 707 Seventeenth St., Suite 2700, Denver, CO 80202-3427; fax: 303-296-8332 (\$18 prepaid).
PUB TYPE	Numerical/Quantitative Data (110) Tests/Questionnaires (160)
EDRS PRICE	MF01/PC03 Plus Postage.
DESCRIPTORS	Fees; Higher Education; In State Students; National Surveys; Out of State Students; Paying For College; *Policy Analysis; *State Boards of Education; *State Colleges; State Universities; *Student Costs; Student Financial Aid; Tables (Data); *Tuition; Two Year Colleges
IDENTIFIERS	*State Higher Education Executive Officers; Tuition Savings Plans

ABSTRACT

This report examines state policies and procedures affecting tuition, fees, and financial assistance at state institutions of higher education in 1996-97. The report is based on a fall 1996 national survey of state-level coordinating agencies or multi-institution governing boards. The report addresses: (1) policies and procedures for setting resident tuition (including tuition philosophy and roles and authority to set tuition); (2) policies and procedures for setting non-resident tuition (including tuition reciprocity); (3) tuition differentials; (4) tuition revenue (including control and retention of tuition revenue); (5) financial assistance and tuition wavers; (6) fees (mandatory and designated fees, technology fees); and (7) state college savings plans. Among the report's findings are that costs for a student to attend a public college or university will continue to be carefully scrutinized, and that discussions on student acess to college and on how much students and the public should pay will be ongoing. Tables in the text aggregate data, by two-year and four-year institutions where relevant. Appended are the survey instrument upon which the study was based, a listing of respondents, and additional state-by-state data. (BF)



STATE TUITION AND FEE POLICIES

Ì

ED 409 806

1996-97

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION Office of Educational Research and Improve EDUCATIONAL RESOURCES INFORMATION CENTER (ERIC)

Lins document has been reproduced as received from the person or organization organizing it Minor changes have been made to improve reproduction quality

Points of view or opinions stated in this document do not necessarily represent official OERI position or policy

PERMISSION TO REPRODUCE AND DISSEMINATE THIS MATERIAL HAS BEEN GRANTED BY

SHEEO

2

TO THE EDUCATIONAL RESOURCES INFORMATION CENTER (ERIC)

BEST COPY AVAILABLE



Melodie E. Christal

March 1997



Ë

Ĩ

ERIC

SHEO State Higher Education Executive Officers

© Copyright 1997 by the State Higher Education Executive Officers All rights reserved

Melodie E. Christal is Director of the SHEEO/NCES Communication Network.

The State Higher Education Executive Officers is a nonprofit, nationwide association of the chief executive officers serving statewide coordinating boards and governing boards of postsecondary education. Its objectives include developing the interest of the states in supporting quality higher education; promoting the importance of state planning and coordination as the most effective means of gaining public confidence in higher education; and encouraging cooperative relationships with the federal government, colleges and universities and other institutional state-based associations. Forty-nine states and Puerto Rico are members.

Copies of this report are available from the SHEEO Office for \$18.00 prepaid. Send request to State Higher Education Executive Officers, 707 Seventeenth Street, Suite 2700, Denver, Colorado 80202-3427; fax 303-296-8332.



 \mathcal{L}

Table of Contents

Ì

ľ

Full Text Provided by ERIC

List of Tablesv
Foreword vii
State Tuition and Fee Policies: 1996-97 1
Appendix A: Survey Instrument
Appendix B: Tuition Philosophy by State
Appendix C: Roles and Authority to Set Tuition by State
Appendix D: Factors Used in Setting Tuition by State
Appendix E: States Indexing Nonresident Tuition to Cost of Instruction
Appendix F: States Setting Nonresident Tuition as a Multiple of Resident Tuition
Appendix G: Tuition Reciprocity/"Good Neighbor" Agreements by State
Appendix H: Tuition Differentials by Category by State
Appendix I: Control and Retention of Tuition Revenue by State
Appendix J: Financial Assistance by Program and Authority by State
Appendix K: Tuition Waivers by Type and Authority by State
Appendix L: Roles and Authority to Set Fees by State
Appendix M: Technology Fees by State60
Appendix N: States with College Savings Plans64
Appendix O: Survey Respondents

iii

List of Tables

Ì

Table 1: Tuition Philosophy 2)
Table 2: Roles and Authority to Set Tuition 2	2
Table 3: Factors Used in Setting Tuition 3	}
Table 4: Tuition Differentials by Category 4	ł
Table 5: Control and Retention of Tuition Revenue 5	5
Table 6: Financial Assistance by Program and Authority 6	5
Table 7: Tuition Waivers by Type and Authority 7	7
Table 8: Roles and Authority to Set Mandatory and Designated Fees 8	3

v

Foreword

As costs for students to attend a public college or university continue to rise and are closely scrutinized by legislators and students, higher education policymakers consider the impact of changes to tuition, fees, and financial assistance on access and enrollment. This report, *State Tuition and Fee Policies: 1996-97*, examines state policies and procedures affecting tuition, fees, and financial assistance in 1996-97.

This report is the third update by SHEEO on this important topic. The initial report in 1988, *Survey on Tuition Policy, Costs, and Student Aid*, was produced by John Wittstruck. Charles S. Lenth updated the report in 1993 with the *The Tuition Dilemma--State Policies and Practices in Pricing Public Higher Education*. The latest version of the report by Melodie E. Christal updates and expands the information presented in the earlier two reports; the 1996-97 report now includes information on two new areas of interest, technology fees and state college savings plans. In addition, for the first time data by state are provided in the appendices.

Many individuals were involved in developing this report. Melodie E. Christal and Alene Bycer Russell with SHEEO collaborated with Cheryl D. Blanco and Robin Etter Zuniga from the Western Interstate Commission on Higher Education (WICHE) in designing the survey instrument. (A separate report, *Slowing the Spiral: Resident Undergraduate Tuition Levels and Policies, Western States, 1996-97*, has been published by WICHE.) Information for this report was provided by the state higher education agency staff. Alene Russell, Cheryl Blanco, and Amy Sebring of the Education Commission of the States also offered valuable feedback in editing the report and checking the tables, and Dianne K. Peterson had the considerable task of providing production support.

We welcome your comments on this report.

James R. Mingle Executive Director State Higher Education Executive Officers Denver, Colorado

State Tuition and Fee Policies: 1996-97

Introduction

The cost for a student to attend a public college or university is a "hot" issue for the 1990s. Between 1980 and 1996, tuition has more than doubled at public four-year colleges and universities, increasing 256 percent. In comparison, the Consumer Price Index increased 79 percent during this period.

Moreover, tuition is only part of the charge students are required to pay to attend college. In addition, there are numerous fees for services including athletics, health, recreation, insurance, computer use, debt service, and special courses. Many states and institutions have turned to special fees as a means to earmark revenue for specific activities. Some critics perceive these fees as a way to "hide" actual tuition increases.

Increasing tuition and fees, coupled with fewer grants for financial aid are now causing students and parents to take on much greater burdens for paying for college. Consequently, state-level policymakers continue to raise concerns about student access to college. How much students and the public should pay for higher education is the subject of fervent discussion among legislators, higher education administrators, and taxpayers.

This report examines state policies and procedures affecting tuition, fees, and financial assistance in 1996-97. The information was collected in fall 1996 from the state-level coordinating agencies or multi-institution governing boards from 48 states. (Michigan and Pennsylvania did not respond.) See Appendix A for the complete survey instrument.

Policies and Procedures for Setting Resident Tuition

Tuition Philosophy. Tuition rates for resident students are greatly influenced by state policies and by the level of state support for public institutions. Great variations exist across states in basic philosophies for setting tuition rates, ranging from tuition as low as possible to maximize access to high tuition, where those who have the ability to pay bear a larger proportion of education costs. These different philosophies are summarized in Table 1; see Appendix B for responses by state.

Over one-half the states reported a philosophy of either low (13 states) or moderate (13 states) tuition. Eleven states noted there was no statewide philosophy, but that tuition was guided by institutional philosophy or budgetary needs. Virginia and Florida are the only two states that reported a philosophy of high tuition, but the legislatures are sending different messages. In Virginia, continuing tuition increases for undergraduate residents were not acceptable to the General Assembly and rates for 1996-97 and 1997-98 have been frozen. The Florida legislature has a practice of setting low tuition, but the sector boards have been encouraging reasonable increases with the provision of additional need-based aid.



Table 1 Tuition Philosophy

Philosophy	Four-year Sector	Two-year Sector
Tuition should be low as possible	13 (28%)	16 (35%)
Tuition should be moderate	13 (28%)	8 (17%)
Tuition should be high	2 (4%)	2 (4%)
No statewide philosophytuition is guided by institutional philosophy or budgetary needs	11 (23%)	12 (26%)
Other	8 (17%)	8 (17%)

(Number and Percentage of States)

Note: Not all states responded.

Authority to Set Resident Tuition. Legal authority to set resident tuition generally rests with the system or institutional governing boards. The legislature has constitutional or statutory authority to set tuition in six states, and the legislature sets tuition by practice in four additional states. In most states, however, several entities typically play some role in setting tuition. For example, in a number of states, the legislature must appropriate tuition revenue which thereby can have the effect of influencing tuition rates. Table 2 summarizes the number of states and types of governmental bodies that have authority to set resident tuition rates in public institutions. Refer to Appendix C for information by state.

Table 2Roles and Authority to Set Tuition

(Number of States)

	Four-yea	r Sector	Two-year Sector	
Governmental Body	Constitutional/ Statutory	Practice	Constitutional/ Statutory	Practice
Legislature	6	4	7	1
State governing/coordinating agency	5	1	8	1
System governing board	33	1	22	1
Institutional/local district governing board	14	3	18	3

Note: Columns may total more than 50 since multiple agencies are involved in some states.

Factors Used in Setting Resident Tuition. States and institutions often consider a number of external factors directly or indirectly in setting tuition rates. Typically these factors are external economic factors or internal cost factors. In some cases, tuition rates are directly linked to these factors (i.e., indexed), but most commonly they are taken into account indirectly in setting tuition.

The most frequently used factors are summarized in Table 3 with prior year's tuition, cost of instruction, and state general fund appropriations heading the list. A state listing is provided in Appendix D.



2

Table 3Factors Used in Setting Tuition

	Four-ye	Two-year Sector		
Factors	Direct Linkage (Indexed)	Considered Indirectly	Direct Linkage (Indexed)	Considered Indirectly
Prior year's tuition	18	22	19	15
Cost of instruction/education	12	27	13	19
State general fund appropriations	10	27	12	20
Institutional mission	7	23	9	17
Higher Education Price Index (HEPI)	6	21	4	13
Peer institutions or groups	5	31	5	24
Other student fees or charges	2	31	4	22
Financial aid	2	25	2	19
Consumer Price Index (CPI)	2	25	1	18
State personal or disposable income	1	17	2	14
Cost of living	0	21	1	15

(Number of States)

Note: Typically, more than one factor is taken into account in setting tuition rates.

The Carnegie Commission reports of the 1970s recommended that tuition at public institutions be determined as a proportion of the total cost of education provided to students. Although 39 states consider cost of instruction either directly or indirectly in setting tuition for the four-year sector, Florida is the only state that mandates what the percentage should be--25 percent of the cost.

States use a number of ways to determine tuition as a proportion of cost of instruction, and this survey did not prescribe a methodology. For the four-year sector, tuition averaged 35 percent of the cost based on 39 reporting states; the two-year sector average was 30 percent based on 35 states. Almost 20 percent of the states report that tuition as a percentage of cost is 25 percent or less and three-quarters of the states report the cost is between 26-50 percent; three states report tuition is greater than 50 percent of the cost. In the two-year sector, 43 percent of the states report tuition as a cost of instruction is 25 percent or less, and 51 percent report it to be between 26-50 percent; two states report tuition is greater than 50 percent of less.

Policies and Procedures for Setting Nonresident Tuition

Setting Nonresident Tuition. All 48 states reported that institutions charge nonresident students a higher tuition rate than resident students. In setting nonresident tuition rates, the most common practice is to index nonresident tuition to the full cost of instruction with the nonresident student paying 100 percent or more of the cost, although there are some variations on the amount. For the four-year sector, six states require indexing in state statute and in five states it is written into a



formal policy. For the two-year sector, statutes in nine states require indexing to the full cost of instruction and another six states have a formal policy addressing this. See Appendix E.

Nine states establish nonresident tuition for the four-year sector as a multiple of resident tuition either in state statute (2 states) or formal policy (7 states), varying from two to three and one-half times the resident tuition rate. See Appendix F for detail by state.

Tuition Reciprocity/"Good Neighbor" Agreements. Thirty-four states have tuition reciprocity agreements with other states providing reduced tuition charges for nonresident undergraduate students at four-year institutions. These agreements are often through regional and multi-state programs sponsored by the four regional compacts (New England Board of Higher Education, Southern Regional Education Board, Midwestern Education Commission, and Western Interstate Commission on Higher Education) with the intent of reducing program duplication and increasing student access.

Institutions in 19 states have "good neighbor" policies for students from neighboring states. These are typically bilateral agreements where nonresident tuition charges are waived within multi-state metropolitan areas or resident tuition rates are applicable to nonresident students residing in a contiguous state, typically within a specified distance of the institution. Appendix G provides a list of states with these agreements.

Tuition Differentials

There are a number of areas where institutions may charge tuition differentials, in other words, institutions may charge students different tuition rates according to level, type of program, or some other factor (Table 4).

	Table 4		
Tuition	Differentials	by	Category

(Number of States)

Category	Four-year Sector	Two-year Sector
Undergraduate/graduate	41	n/a
Programmatic	33	11
Credit/non-credit bearing	23	27
Credit hours beyond a specific number (e.g., tuition surcharge)	9	6
Upper division/lower division	8	n/a

Note: Number of responses varies by question.

The most common differential is for undergraduate and graduate programs with 41 states reporting institutions charge different rates. Over one-half the states reported different tuition rates are charged depending on whether the student receives credit for the course--institutions in 23 states charge different tuition rates for credit and non-credit courses in the four-year sector,



and in 27 states for the two-year sector. Much less common is charging different tuition rates for lower division and upper division undergraduate programs, with only eight states indicating institutions do this.

The four-year sector in 33 states charges tuition according to the program in which the student is enrolled; typically, higher cost programs such as engineering or professional programs (medicine, dentistry, veterinary medicine, and law) have higher tuition. For the two-year sector, institutions in only 11 states charge different tuition rates based on the program the student is enrolled.

Students enrolled in the four-year sector in nine states are charged a higher rate (i.e., a surcharge) if the total hours they have enrolled in exceed a specified number; this practice has been adopted in the two-year sector in six states. Surcharges are a relatively new phenomenon as states and legislatures are addressing the number of hours it takes some students to receive a baccalaureate degree.

Appendix H provides tuition differentials by state.

Tuition Revenue

Who controls tuition revenue and for what purposes this revenue can be used also impacts tuition rates. In about one-half of the states, tuition revenue is controlled and retained at the institutional or campus level, and in five states it is retained at the state level under the control of a governing or coordinating board. Tuition revenue is held in separate state tuition accounts in nine states for four-year institutions and in six states for two-year institutions; in these cases a state appropriation is required prior to expenditure. Only one state, Massachusetts, requires that tuition revenue be deposited in the state general funds, with the return to higher education only inferred. (See Table 5.) In Arizona, a portion of tuition revenues are retained locally for financial aid, debt service, and other programs; the remainder is deposited with the state but not appropriated, and used to fund the "state operating budget expenditure authority."

Data by state are provided in Appendix I.

Table 5Control and Retention of Tuition Revenue

(Number of States)

Treatment of Tuition Revenue	Four-year Sector	Two-year Sector
Retained at state level under control of a governing or coordinating board	5	4
Controlled and retained by an institution or campus	26	31
Deposited in separate state tuition accounts requiring appropriation	9	6
Deposited in state general funds, with return to higher education only inferred	1	1
Other	8	5

Note: Some states may have more than one response.

Financial Assistance and Tuition Waivers

Financial Assistance. As indicated in Table 6, states and institutions use a number of approaches for providing financial assistance to students. The majority of the states provide for need-based grants and merit-based scholarships in statute or formal policy, although several states leave these programs to the discretion of the institutions. Twenty-one states have state-based work-study programs for the four-year sector in state statute or formal policy, and in six states, these programs are at the discretion of the institutions; for the two-year sector, state-based work study programs are authorized in statute or policy in 18 states and left to institutional discretion in 5 states.

Loan forgiveness programs (including conditional scholarships) and state-funded guaranteed programs are state-level programs typically authorized in statute or policy; these programs were initially established to augment the number of professionals entering certain fields or serving targeted state needs such as nurses, or physicians or teachers for inner cities or rural areas. Thirty states offer these programs in the four-year sector, with all but one authorized in state statute or by formal policy; these programs are available in the two-year sector in 22 states.

Although only seven states report Taylor/Eugene Lang plans (tuition waivers guaranteed at an early age upon meeting certain criteria), these programs are most often funded by the private sector and may not be reflected here.

Information by state is provided in Appendix J.

	Four-yea	ar Sector	Two-year Sector		
Financial Assistance Programs	State Statutes or Policies	Institutional Discretion	State Statutes or Policies	Institutional Discretion	
Need-based grants	44	7	39	9	
Merit-based scholarships	37	17	28	15	
Loan forgiveness programs	29	1	20	2	
State-based work-study programs	21	.6	18	5	
State-funded guaranteed loans	11	1	11	1	
Taylor/Eugene Lang plans	4	3	. 4	2	

Table 6Financial Assistance by Program and Authority

(Number of States)

Note: Number of responses varies by question; some states may have more than one response.

Tuition Waivers. States provide tuition waivers for many different categories of beneficiaries (Table 7). Some tuition-waiver programs are supported through special state appropriations; others receive partial or no direct appropriations to offset revenues lost through providing waivers. In general, waivers in state statute or formal policy are more prevalent for four-year institutions than two-year institutions.

6



Table 7Tuition Waivers by Type and Authority

	Four-yea	ar Sector	Two-year Sector	
Type of Waiver	State Statutes or Policies	Institutional Discretion	State Statutes or Policies	Institutional Discretion
Dependents of deceased police officers/fire fighters	32	2	29	2
Military (e.g., veterans, National Guard)	31	7	28	7
Senior citizens	28	13	22	15
Faculty/staff members	27	20	19	21
Graduate assistants	27	18	n/a	n/a
Student athletes	19	19	6	18
Dependents of faculty/staff members	15	21	13	22
Students who qualify for need-based aid	13	16	10	19
Students who qualify for merit-based aid	12	20	8	19
State employees/civil servants	9	6	7	9
Dependents of state employees/civil servants	4	3	2	6
Participants in public service programs	1	5	0	6

(Number of States)

Note: Number of responses varies by question; some states may have more than one response.

Tuition waivers are provided for graduate assistants in 45 states, 27 through state statute or formal policy and 18 at the discretion of the institutions. Waivers for student athletes are provided by state statute or formal policy in 19 states for the four-year sector and in six states for the two-year sector; student athlete waivers are delegated to institutions in 19 states for the four-year sector and in 18 states for the two-year sector. Thirteen states have statutes or policies for waivers for students who qualify for need-based aid, and 12 states have them for students who qualify for merit-based aid.

Institutions in almost every state offer tuition waiver benefits to faculty and staff at four-year institutions--27 through state statute or policy and 18 through institutional action. Waivers for faculty and staff are typically limited to one or two courses per term. In addition, tuition benefits are provided to dependents of faculty and staff in 36 states, with five states authorizing waivers for dependents in state statute and 10 states by formal policy. In the two-year sector, tuition waivers are provided for faculty and staff in 40 states and for dependents of faculty and staff in 35 states.

About two-thirds of the states provide tuition waivers for military service veterans or National Guard members and for dependents of deceased police officers or fire fighters--the majority of these are authorized by state statute.

See Appendix K for state data.



Fees

Mandatory and Designated Fees. Two types of fees are typically charged in higher education: mandatory fees and designated fees. Mandatory fees are those fees which a majority of full-time students are required to pay in addition to tuition. For example, they may include registration, health services or insurance, student activity, computer use, debt service, and/or university support fees. Designated fees are defined as fees that are charged to students enrolled in specific courses, certain categories of students (e.g., entering students, graduates, doctoral students), or user fees for specific services (e.g., computer use fees).

Fee setting for both mandatory and designated fees is most often delegated to the system governing board or directly to the institutions, with almost every state reporting authorization at these two levels (Table 8). For the four-year sector, the legislature has authority to set mandatory fees in five states (California, Florida, Oklahoma, Oregon, Texas) and designated fees in two (Oklahoma and Texas). For the two-year sector, the legislature has authority to set mandatory and designated fees in California, Oklahoma, and Texas, and mandatory fees in Florida and North Carolina.

Data by state are provided in Appendix L.

Table 8Roles and Authority to Set Mandatory and Designated Fees

Governmental	Four-ye	ar Sector	Two-year Sector		
Body	Mandatory	Designated	Mandatory	Designated	
Legislature	5	2	5	3	
State coordinating/governing agency	3	2	5	4	
System governing board	32	31	22	22	
Institution/local district governing board	23	27	26	30	

(Number of States)

Note: Columns may total more than 50 since multiple entities are involved in some states.

Technology Fees. One relatively new fee that has been introduced in the 1990s is a technology fee. Eight states (Georgia, Iowa, North Carolina, North Dakota, Oklahoma, Oregon, Washington, Wisconsin) have state-level guidelines or policies that address technology fees for four-year institutions, and four states (Georgia, North Dakota, Oklahoma, Wisconsin) have guidelines for two-year institutions. Four-year institutions in 39 states and two-year institutions in 33 states are authorized to charge technology fees.

There is great variance in the technology fee charge for on-campus classes as noted in Appendix M. Technology fees for the four-year sector range from \$0.50 per credit hour in Minnesota upwards to \$475 per term in North Dakota. Nationwide, the use of technology fees is fairly consistent with all responding states indicating that the fees are used strictly for items such as computers, software, Internet access, technology infrastructure, and computer labs. Some states where institutions charge a high fee (e.g., North Dakota's Valley City State University) require



students to lease or purchase a computer. In Washington, 3.5 percent of revenue from the technology fee must go toward institutional financial aid; the student government at each institution must agree to the fee and approve expenditures.

A few states reported special fees or surcharges on distance-learning classes for 1996-97. See Appendix M for detail.

State College Savings Plans

In response to rapidly rising costs of higher education, 27 states have implemented some type of state college savings plan, although several are not currently operational. These plans began as early as 1959 when New Jersey set the precedent for states to help parents save for their children's education by issuing Garden State Savings Bonds. Almost three decades passed before the Michigan Education Trust was offered as in innovative state prepaid tuition plan. Today, there are basically three types of plans: prepaid tuition plans, savings plan trusts, state college savings bonds. Explanations of these three plans are provided in Appendix N. Appendix N also provides a list of states that have authorization for college savings plans and the status and type of plan.

Concluding Remarks

The cost for a student to attend a public college or university will continue to be carefully scrutinized, and discussions on student access to college and on how much students and the public should pay will be ongoing. Formal and informal policies governing tuition, fees, and financial assistance will play a large role in responding to these debates.

Appendices

ļ

ERIC.

.

Appendix A

STATE HIGHER EDUCATION EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

SURVEY ON 1996-97 STATE TUITION, FEES, & FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE POLICIES

This survey solicits information on state-level policies and procedures governing public higher education tuition, fees, and financial assistance. For simplicity, the term "tuition" as used in this survey includes all standard student charges including required "education fees" in states that prohibit tuition per se.

Some questions are intended to update and clarify information collected through the last SHEEO survey on this topic in 1992. Other questions are new or expanded to reflect the changing financial and political circumstances in which tuition policies are set. This is not a survey of the actual rates or amounts of current tuition, since there are already several sources for these data.

Section I: Current Policies & Changes

- 1. Please send a copy of your state tuition policies for 1996-97 for public four-year and two-year institutions (if different) including policies that address the following:
 - tuition setting
 defining resident/nonresident status
 technology fees
 - defining resident/nonresident status

tuition reciprocity/"good neighbor"

financial assistance

"Tuition policies" in this context may include constitutional or statutory provisions, governing or coordinating board policies or procedures, and less formal practices within the appropriations, budget review, or formula funding systems that affect tuition charges within the state.

Policy changes:		4-Yea	r		2-Yea	ır
a. Do your 1996-97 policies reflect any changes since 1994-95? (Please describe.)	Y	N		Y	N	
b. Is your state considering a change in these policies for 1997-98? (Please describe.)	Y	N	U	Y	N	U

Y = Yes; N = No; U = Unknown

Section II: Resident Students

- 3. The following statements characterize different philosophies or approaches used in setting tuition levels. Please indicate the statement that best characterizes the overall tuition philosophy for four-year and two-year colleges in your state.
 - A--Tuition should be as low as possible. B--Tuition should be moderate. C--Tuition should be high.
 - D--There is no statewide philosophy; tuition is guided by institutional-level philosophy or budgetary needs.
 - *E--Other--please describe.*

	4-Year				2-Year					
Statement that best characterizes overall tuition philosophy.	Α	В	С	D	E	A	В	С	D	E

4.	Tuition setting:	4-3	(ear	2-	Year
	a. Tuition is what percentage of the cost of undergraduate instruction?		%		%
	b. Is this percentage mandated?	Y	N	Y	N
	c. Does any governing body in your state (e.g., legislature, governing board) limit the annual rate of tuition increase? (<i>Please explain.</i>)	Y	N	Y	N

5. Which of the following governmental bodies has authority to establish tuition rates in your state? Circle the letter corresponding to the type of authority: **constitutional (C)**, **statutory (S)**, by **practice (P)**, or **none (N)**.

		4-Y	'ear		2-Year			
a. Legislature	С	S	Р	N	С	S	Р	N
b. State coordinating/governing agency	С	S	Р	N	C	S	Р	N
c. System governing board	C	S	Р	N	С	S	Р	Ν
d. Institutional/local district governing board	C	S	P	Ν	С	S	Р	Ν
e. Other (Please specify.)	C	S	Р	N	C	S	Р	N



6. Which of the following factors are used in setting tuition rates? For each factor, indicate if there is a **direct linkage** ("indexing") between the factor and the tuition rate (D); whether the factor is considered **indirectly** (I); or the factor is **not taken into account** (N).

		4-Yea	r		2-Yea	r
a. Consumer Price Index (CPI)	D	Ι	N	D	I	N
b. Higher Education Price Index (HEPI)	D	Ι	N	D	Ι	N
c. Cost of living	D	Ι	Ν	D	Ι	N
d. State personal or disposable income	D	Ι	N	D	Ι	N
e. State general fund appropriations	D	Ι	N	D	Ι	N
f. Cost of instruction/education	D	Ι	N	D	Ι	N
g. Prior year's tuition	D	Ι	N	D	Ι	N
h. Other student fees or charges	D	I	N	D	Ι	N
i. Peer institutions or groups	D	Ι	N	D	Ι	N
j. Financial aid	D	Ι	N	D	Ι	N
k. Institutional mission	D	I	N	D	I	N
1. Other (Please specify.)	D	Ι	N	D	I	N

7. Are the following types of differential tuition used in your state?

		(ear	2-1	'ear
a. Resident/nonresident	Y	N	Y	N
b. Upper division/lower division	Y	N	Y	N
c. Undergraduate/graduate	Y	N	Y	N
d. Programmatic	Y	N	Y	N
e. Credit/non-credit bearing	Y	N	Y	N
f. Credit hours beyond a specific number (e.g., credit hours above 140 are charged at a higher rate)	Y	N	Y	N
g. Other (Please explain.)	Y	N	Y	N



20

- 8. Below are statements that describe tuition revenue policies. Which best describes the tuition revenue policies for four-year and two-year colleges in your state?
 - A--Tuition revenues are retained at the state level under the control of a governing or coordinating board.
 - B--Tuition revenues are controlled and retained by an institution or campus.
 - C--Tuition revenues are deposited in separate state tuition accounts from which all funds must be appropriated prior to expenditure for higher education purposes.
 - D--Tuition revenues are deposited in the state general funds, with their return to higher education only inferred.
 - E--Other (Please describe.)

	4-Year	2-Year
Statement that best characterizes the tuition revenue policies in your state. (Please note exceptions.)	ABCDE	ABCDE

Section III: Nonresident Students

9. How is nonresident (out-of-state) tuition set in your state for four-year and two-year institutions? Is this by state statute (S); formal policy, but not in statute (F); an informal practice (I); or does not apply (N)?

	4-Year	2-Year
a. Indexed to the cost of instruction e.g., 100% of instructional costs. (Specify percent.)	S F I N %	S F I N %
b. A multiple of resident undergraduate tuition e.g., 2 times the resident rate. (Specify factor.)	S F I N times	S F I N times
c. Other. (Please describe.)	SFIN	SFIN



10. Other tuition policies:	4-3	/ear	2-Year		
a. Does your state have undergraduate tuition reciprocity agreements with other states?	Y	N	Y	N	
b. Does your state have a "good neighbor" policy for students from neighboring states?	Y	N	Y	N	

Section IV: Fees

11. Mandatory fees are defined as all fees that a majority of full-time students are required to pay in addition to tuition. For example, they may include registration, health services or insurance, student activity, computer use, debt service, and/or university support fees.

Designated fees are defined as fees that are charged to (1) students enrolled in specific courses or academic programs to cover supplies or equipment; (2) certain categories of students, such as graduates, entering students, doctoral students; or (3) students who use specific services such as computer use fees for specific courses.

What entities in your state have the authority to set fees? Does this apply to mandatory (M) and/or designated fees (D)? (Circle all that apply.)

	4-Y	2-Year		
a. Legislature	M	D	M	D
b. State coordinating/governing agency	M	D	M	D
c. System governing board	M	D	M	D
d. Institutional/local district governing board	M	D	M	D
e. Other (Please specify.)	M	D	M	D

* *

22

2. Technology fees:	4-	Year	2-1	l'ear
a. Are there guidelines or policies at the state-level specifically addressing technology fees?	Y	N	Y	N
b. Are individual institutions currently authorized to charge a technology fee?	Y	N	Y	N
 c. What is the range of technology fees for on-campus classes for 1996-97: per credit hour? per term (flat rate for full-time student)? 	\$ \$	/ch /term	\$ \$	/ch /term
 d. What surcharges or special fees are imposed on distance-learning classes for 1996-97: per credit hour? per term (flat rate)? 	\$ \$	/ch /term	\$ \$	/ch /term
e. Typically, what are the stated purposes for these technology fees?				

Section V: Financial Assistance

13. Please describe the relationship between the tuition policies and financial aid policies in your state.



14. Does your state offer any of the following student assistance programs? Circle the letter corresponding to the authority for offering the program: program offered under state statute (S); program offered through a formal policy, but not in statute (F); program offered at discretion of institutions (I); program not offered (N). Please provide explanations of items as needed or attach any descriptive materials that pertain to any of these programs.

		4-Y	'ear	2-Year				
a. Need-based grants	S	F	Ι	N	S	F	Ι	Ν
b. Merit-based scholarships	S	F	Ι	N	S	F	Ι	Ν
c. Loan forgiveness programs (including conditional scholarships)	S	F	Ι	N	S	F	Ι	N
d. State-based work-study programs	S	F	Ι	N	S	F	Ι	N
e. State-funded guaranteed loans	S	F	Ι	N	S	F	Ι	N
f. Tuition prepayment plans/tuition savings plans	S	F	Ι	N	S	F	Ι	N
g. Taylor/Eugene Lang plans (waivers guaranteed at early age upon meeting certain criteria)	S	F	Ι	N	S	F	Ι	N
h. Other (Please specify.)	S	F	Ι	N	S	F	Ι	N

15. Do the **public institutions** in your state provide tuition waivers (full or partial) for any of the following categories of students? Circle the letter corresponding to the authority for offering the waiver: waiver offered under state statute (S); waiver offered through a formal policy, but not in statute (F); waiver offered at discretion of institutions (I); waiver not offered (N). Please provide explanations of items as needed or attach any descriptive materials that pertain to any of these waivers.

		4 - Y	'ear		2-Year				
a. Graduate assistants	S	F	Ι	N	S	F	Ι	N	
b. Student athletes	S	F	Ι	N	S	F	Ι	N	
c. Faculty/staff members	S	F	Ι	N	S	F	Ι	N	
d. Dependents of faculty/staff members	S	F	I	N	S	F	Ι	N	
e. State employees/civil servants (other than faculty/staff)	S	F	Ι	N	S	F	Ι	N	
f. Dependents of state employees/civil servants (other than faculty/staff)	S	F	Ι	N	S	F	Ι	N	
g. Dependents of deceased police officers or fire fighters	S	F	Ι	Ν	S	F	Ι	N	
h. Participants in public service programs (e.g., Campus Compact)	S	F	I	N	S	F	Ι	١	
i. Military (e.g., veterans, National Guard)	S	F	Ι	N	S	F	Ι	١	
j. Senior citizens	S	F	I	Ν	S	F	Ι	١	
k. Students who qualify for need-based aid	S	F	Ι	Ν	S	F	Ι	1	
I. Students who qualify for merit-based aid	S	F	Ι	N	S	F	Ι	1	
m. Other (Please specify.)	S	F	Ι	N	S	F	Ι	١	



Appendix B-1 Tuition Philosophy by State Four-year Sector

A-Tuition should be as low as possible.

B-Tuition should be moderate.

C-Tuition should be high.

D-There is no statewide philosophy; tuition is guided by institutional-level philosophy or budgetary needs.

E-Other.

State	A	В	С	D	E
	Low	Moderate	High	No Philosophy	Other
Alabama				X	
Alaska					X (a)
Arizona	Х				
Arkansas				X	
California	X				
Colorado		X			
Connecticut		X (b)			
Delaware					
Florida		X (c)	X (c)		
Georgia		X			
Hawaii	X				
Idaho	X				
Illinois		X			
Indiana	X				
Iowa		X			
Kansas	X				
Kentucky	X				
Louisiana				X	
Maine					
Maryland				X	
Massachusetts					X (d)
Michigan*					
Minnesota					X (e)
Mississippi	X				
Missouri				X	
Montana		X			
Nebraska					X (f)
Nevada	X		-		
New Hampshire				X	
New Jersey				X	
New Mexico				X	
New York (SUNY)		X			
North Carolina	X				
North Dakota		X			
Ohio				X	
Oklahoma					X (g)

20

SHEEO State Tuition and Fee Policies: 1996-97



Appendix B-1 Tuition Philosophy by State Four-year Sector

A-Tuition should be as low as possible.

B-Tuition should be moderate.

C-Tuition should be high.

D-There is no statewide philosophy; tuition is guided by institutional-level philosophy or budgetary needs.

E-Other.

State	Α	B	С	D	Е
	Low	Moderate	High	No Philosophy	Other
Oregon		X			
Pennsylvania*					
Rhode Island	X				
South Carolina				X	
South Dakota					X (h)
Tennessee					X (i)
Texas	X				
Utah		X			
Vermont				X	
Virginia			X		
Washington		X			
West Virginia					X (h)
Wisconsin		X			
Wyoming	X				

(a) Although an attempt is made to minimize tuition increases, there is no statewide philosophy.

- (b) In recent years, tuition increases have been made in response to budget pressures. Institutions are now trying to hold increases to the rate of inflation.
- (c) Practice of the legislature has been to maintain low tuition. The sector boards have been encouraging reasonable increases with the provision of additional need-based aid.
- (d) Student charges (tuition and fees) should not exceed a set percentage of the cost of education.
- (e) State statute divides responsibility for instruction among taxpayers and students. For the University of Minnesota and the State Colleges, students pay one-third of the cost of their education, taxpayers two-thirds.
- (f) At the state level, the Coordinating Commission for Postsecondary Education provides tuition guidelines through its *Comprehensive Statewide Plan for Postsecondary Education*. Gubernatorial and legislative practices have been to encourage moderate tuition levels.
- (g) The State Regents have recommended that students pay one-third of the cost of their education, taxpayers two-thirds. Certain members of the legislature would espouse the philosophy in A.
- (h) Tuition increases should not exceed the Higher Education Price Index except in special circumstances.
- (i) Tuition is guided by formula funding requirements and surrounding state actions.

*Did not respond to survey.



Appendix B-2 Tuition Philosophy by State Two-year Sector

A-Tuition should be as low as possible.

B-Tuition should be moderate.

C-Tuition should be high.

D-There is no statewide philosophy; tuition is guided by institutional-level philosophy or budgetary needs.

E-Other.

State	A Low	B Moderate	C High	D No Philosophy	E Other
Alabama				X	
Alaska					X (a)
Arizona				X	
Arkansas	Х				
California	X				
Colorado		X			
Connecticut		X			
Delaware					
Florida		X (b)	X (b)		
Georgia		X			
Hawaii	X				
Idaho				X	
Illinois	X				
Indiana	Х				
Iowa					X (c)
Kansas	X				
Kentucky	X				
Louisiana				X	
Maine					
Maryland				X	
Massachusetts					X (d)
Michigan*					
Minnesota					X (e)
Mississippi	X				
Missouri				X	
Montana		X			
Nebraska					X (f)
Nevada	X				
New Hampshire				X	
New Jersey				X	
New Mexico				X	
New York (SUNY)		X			
North Carolina	X				
North Dakota		X			
Ohio				X	
Oklahoma					X (g)

SHEEO State Tuition and Fee Policies: 1996-97



Appendix B-2 Tuition Philosophy by State Two-year Sector

A-Tuition should be as low as possible.

B-Tuition should be moderate.

C-Tuition should be high.

D-There is no statewide philosophy; tuition is guided by institutional-level philosophy or budgetary needs.

E-Other.

State	A	B	C	D	E
	Low	Moderate	High	No Philosophy	Other
Oregon				X	
Pennsylvania*					
Rhode Island	X				
South Carolina	X				
South Dakota					
Tennessee					X (h)
Texas	X				
Utah	X				
Vermont				X	
Virginia			Х		
Washington	X				
West Virginia					X (i)
Wisconsin		X			
Wyoming	x				

(a) Although an attempt is made to minimize tuition increases, there is no statewide philosophy.

(b) Practice of the legislature has been to maintain low tuition. The sector boards have been encouraging reasonable increases with the provision of additional need-based aid.

(c) By statute, for Iowa residents, community college tuition cannot exceed the lowest tuition rate per semester charged at a regent institution for a full-time resident student.

- (d) Student charges (tuition and fees) should not exceed a set percentage of the cost of education.
- (e) State statute divides responsibility for instruction among taxpayers and students. For the Community Colleges, students pay one-third of the cost of their education, taxpayers two-thirds. For the Technical Colleges, students pay one-quarter, taxpayers three quarters.
- (f) At the state level, the Coordinating Commission for Postsecondary Education provides tuition guidelines through its *Comprehensive Statewide Plan for Postsecondary Education*. Gubernatorial and legislative practices have been to encourage moderate tuition levels.

(g) The State Regents have recommended that students pay one-third of the cost of their education, taxpayers two-thirds. Certain members of the legislature would espouse the philosophy in A.

- (h) Tuition is guided by formula funding requirements and surrounding state actions.
- (i) Tuition increases should not exceed the Higher Education Price Index except in special circumstances.

*Did not respond to survey.



Appendix C-1 Roles and Authority to Set Tuition by State Four-year Sector

C = Constitutional authority.

S = Statutory authority.

 $P = By \ practice.$

State	Legislature	State Coord/ Governing Agency	System Governing Board	Institution/Local Board
Alabama			С	S
Alaska			S	
Arizona			C&S	
Arkansas				С
California	P		С	
Colorado	С	S	S	S
Connecticut			S	
Delaware				Р
Florida	S		S	
Georgia			С	
Hawaii			S	
Idaho			C&S	Р
Illinois				S
Indiana	S			S
Iowa			S	
Kansas			S	
Kentucky		S		
Louisiana			S	
Maine			S	
Maryland			S	· S
Massachusetts		S		
Michigan*				
Minnesota			C&S	
Mississippi			С	
Missouri			С	S
Montana		С		
Nebraska			S	S
Nevada			С	
New Hampshire			S	
New Jersey				S
New Mexico		Р		С
New York (SUNY)	Р		S	
North Carolina	P		S	
North Dakota			C&P	
Ohio				S
Oklahoma	С	C&S		
Oregon			S	
Pennsylvania*				

Appendix C-1 Roles and Authority to Set Tuition by State Four-year Sector

C = Constitutional authority.

S = Statutory authority.

 $P = By \ practice.$

State	Legislature	State Coord/ Governing Agency	System Governing Board	Institution/Local Board
Rhode Island			S	
South Carolina				S
South Dakota	С		S	
Tennessee			S	
Texas	Р		S	
Utah			S	
Vermont State Col.			S	
Vermont Univ.				С
Virginia				S
Washington	S			
West Virginia			S	
Wisconsin			S	
Wyoming				Р

*Did not respond to survey.



Appendix C-2 Roles and Authority to Set Tuition by State Two-year Sector

C = Constitutional authority.

S = Statutory authority.

 $P = By \ practice.$

State	Legislature	State Coord/ Governing Agency	System Governing Board	Institution/Local Board
Alabama			S	
Alaska			S	
Arizona		S		
Arkansas				S
California	S			
Colorado	С	S	S	S
Connecticut			S	
Delaware				Р
Florida	S	S (a)		S
Georgia			С	
Hawaii			S	
Idaho				S
Illinois				S
Indiana	S			S
Iowa				S
Kansas				S
Kentucky		S		
Louisiana			S	
Maine				
Maryland			S	S
Massachusetts		S		
Michigan*				
Minnesota			S	
Mississippi				S
Missouri				S
Montana		С		
Nebraska				S
Nevada			С	
New Hampshire			S	
New Jersey				S
New Mexico		Р		C&S
New York (SUNY)			S	S
North Carolina	S		S	
North Dakota			C&P	
Ohio				S
Oklahoma	С	C&S		
Oregon				Р
Pennsylvania*				

SHEEO State Tuition and Fee Policies: 1996-97

3í

Appendix C-2 Roles and Authority to Set Tuition by State Two-year Sector

C = Constitutional authority.

S = Statutory authority.

 $P = By \ practice.$

State	Legislature	State Coord/ Governing Agency	System Governing Board	Institution/Local Board
Rhode Island			S	
South Carolina			S	S
South Dakota				
Tennessee			S	
Texas	Р		S	Р
Utah			S	
Vermont State Col.			S	
Virginia				S
Washington	S			
West Virginia			S	
Wisconsin			S	
Wyoming		S		

(a) Based on an amount established in the General Appropriations Act, the State Board of Community Colleges sets a range within which individual college boards may set actual tuition.

*Did not respond to survey.

SHEEO State Tuition and Fee Policies: 1996-97



Appendix D-1 Factors Used in Setting Tuition by State Four-year Sector

 $D = Direct \ linkage \ ("indexing") \ between \ factor \ and \ tuition \ rate.$ $I = Factor \ considered \ indirectly.$

State	СРІ	HEPI	Cost of	Person. Income	Gen. Fund	Cost of	Prior Tuition	Other Fees	Peers	Fin. Aid	Instit. Mission
			Living			Instr.					
Alabama (a)		I	_	I		Ι	Ι				
Alaska		D			Ι	Ι	D	Ι	Ι		Ι
Arizona	I	I	Ι		Ι	Ι	I	D&I	Ι	Ι	
Arkansas	Ι	Ι		Ι		Ι	D		D		D
California	Ι	I	Ι		Ι	I	Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι
Colorado	D		Ι		Ι	Ι	D	Ι		Ι	Ι
Connecticut	Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι	D	D	Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι
Delaware					I	D	Ι		Ι		Ι
Florida						D					
Georgia					D	D	D				D
Hawaii	I		Ι		Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι
Idaho	D			Ι	Ι		D	Ι	Ι		
Illinois	Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι
Indiana	I	Ι	Ι		Ι	Ι	D	Ι	Ι		
Iowa	I	Ι		Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι	
Kansas	Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι	I	I
Kentucky	Ι			D			Ι		D		
Louisiana			Ι	Ι	D	D	D	Ι	D	D	D
Maine											
Maryland (a)						D					
Massachusetts						D	D	Ι			
Michigan*											
Minnesota					D	D	D	Ι		Ι	
Mississippi	Ι	Ι			Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι		Ι
Missouri (a)	I	Ι	Ι				Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι
Montana	Ι	Ι			Ι	D&I	Ι	Ι	Ι		I
Nebraska (a)	Ι	I							Ι		Ι
Nevada		D				Ι			Ι		
New Hampshire	Ι	I	Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι	I	Ι
New Jersey			Ι		D	D	D	Ι	Ι	I	D
New Mexico (a) (b)	Ι	D	Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι	I	Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι
New York (SUNY)					Ι	I	D		Ι	I	
North Carolina		Ι			Ι		Ι	Ι	D	Ι	Ι
North Dakota				Ι	Ι	I	Ι	Ι	I	Ι	I
Ohio (a)											
Oklahoma					Ι	Ι					
Oregon	Ι	Ι	Ι		D	Ι	D	Ι	Ι	Ι	D
Pennsylvania*							1				

SHEEO State Tuition and Fee Policies: 1996-97

33



Appendix D-1 Factors Used in Setting Tuition by State Four-year Sector

 $D = Direct \ linkage \ ("indexing") \ between \ factor \ and \ tuition \ rate.$ $I = Factor \ considered \ indirectly.$

State	СРІ	HEPI	Cost of Living	Person. Income	Gen. Fund	Cost of Instr.	Prior Tuition	Other Fees	Peers	Fin. Aid	Instit. Mission
Rhode Island	I		I	Ī	Ι	Ι	I	Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι
South Carolina		D	I		D	D	D	Ι	Ι	D	I
South Dakota		D			Ι	I	D		Ι		
Tennessee	Ι	I		Ι	D		I	Ι	D	Ι	
Texas											
Utah	Ι	Ι	I	Ι	Ι	I	D	Ι	Ι	Ι	I
Vermont State Col.	Ι		I	Ι	D		[D	D	Ι	Ι	D
Vermont Univ.	Ι	Ι	I		I	I	I	Ι	I	Ι	Ι
Virginia (a)					D	D	Ι				D
Washington	I	Ι	I	I	Ι	I	I	Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι
West Virginia	I	D			Ι	I	D	Ι	Ι	I	Ι
Wisconsin	Ι	I	I	Ι	Ι	I	Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι
Wyoming					D						

(a) SHEEO agency response provided here; however, respondent noted that use of factors may be quite different at the institutional/system level.

(b) The Commission uses the Higher Education Price Index to set "tuition credits."

*Did not respond to survey.

Appendix D-2 Factors Used in Setting Tuition by State Two-year Sector

 $D = Direct \ linkage \ ("indexing") \ between \ factor \ and \ tuition \ rate.$ $I = Factor \ considered \ indirectly.$

State	СРІ	НЕРІ		Person.	Gen.	Cost	Prior	Other	Peers	Fin.	Instit.
	_		of Living	Income	Fund	of Instr.	Tuition	Fees		Aid	Mission
Alabama (a)					Ι	Ι	I				
Alaska		D			I	Ι	D	Ι	Ι		Ι
Arizona					Ι						
Arkansas	Ι	I		Ι		I	D		D		D
California					Ι		I				
Colorado	D		I		Ι	Ι	D	I		I	Ι
Connecticut	1	Ι	I	Ι	I	D	D	I	Ι	Ι	Ι
Delaware					I	D	I		I		I
Florida						D					
Georgia					D	D	D				D
Hawaii	I		I		I	I	I	I	Ι	I	Ι
Idaho	I	I		Ι	D		D	D	I	Ι	Ι
Illinois	I	I	I	Ι	I	I	Ι	I	I	Ι	Ι
Indiana	I	I	I		I	I	D	Ι	Ι		
lowa (a)											
Kansas			D	D		D	D	D	I	I	D
Kentucky	1		1	D			I		D		
Louisiana			I	Ι	D	D	D	Ι	D	D	D
Maine											
Maryland (a)			1			I	D		D		
Massachusetts						D	D	I			
Michigan*											
Minnesota					D	D	D	Ι		I	D
Mississippi				I	D		D	I	I		
Missouri (a)	Ι	I	I				Ι	I	I	I	
Montana	I	I			I	D&I	I	Ι	Ι		I
Nebraska (a)	I	Ι							I		Ι
Nevada		D				I			I	_	
New Hampshire	Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι	I	I	Ι	Ι	I	I	Ι
New Jersey			I		D	D	D	I		I	D
New Mexico (a) (b)											
New York (SUNY)					D	D	D	D	I	Ι	I
North Carolina					D						
North Dakota				I	Ι	Ι	I	I	Ι	Ι	Ι
Ohio (a)											
Oklahoma					I	I					
Oregon (a)											
Pennsylvania*											

SHEEO State Tuition and Fee Policies: 1996-97

35



Appendix D-2 Factors Used in Setting Tuition by State Two-year Sector

 $D = Direct \ linkage \ ("indexing") \ between factor \ and \ tuition \ rate.$ $l = Factor \ considered \ indirectly.$

State	СРІ	HEPI		Person. Income		Cost of Instr.	Prior Tuition		Peers	Fin. Aid	Instit. Mission
Rhode Island	Ι		Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι	D
South Carolina		D	Ι	_	D	D	D	Ι	Ι	D	Ι
South Dakota											
Tennessee	Ι	Ι		Ι	D		Ι	Ι	D	Ι	
Texas					Ι	I					
Utah	Ι	I	Ι	Ι	Ι	I	D	Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι
Vermont State Col.	Ι		Ι	Ι	D		D	D	Ι	Ι	D
Virginia (a)					D	D	Ι				D
Washington	Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι	I
West Virginia	Ι	D			Ι	Ι	D	Ι	Ι	Ι	I
Wisconsin	Ι	I	Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι	I	I	Ι
Wyoming									Ι		

(a) SHEEO agency response provided here; however, respondent noted that use of factors may be quite different at the institutional/system/local district level.

(b) The Commission uses the Higher Education Price Index to set "tuition credits."

*Did not respond to survey.

State	Four-yea	r Sector	Two-yea	r Sector
	Authority	Index	Authority	Index
Florida	State Statute	100%	State Statute	100%
Illinois			State Statute	100%
Iowa			State Statute	(a)
Maryland	State Statute	100%	State Statute	100%
Massachusetts	State Statute	100%	State Statute	100%
Mississippi	State Statute	(b)	State Statute	(b)
Montana	Formal Policy	100%	Formal Policy	100%
Nevada	Formal Policy	100%	Formal Policy	100%
New York (SUNY)			Statute Policy	(c)
North Carolina			Formal Policy	100%
Rhode Island	Formal Policy	100%	Formal Policy	100%
South Dakota	Formal Policy	100%		
Virginia	State Statute	100% or >	State Statute	100% or >
West Virginia	State Statute	100% (d)	State Statute	100% (d)
Wisconsin	Formal Policy	> 100%	Formal Policy	> 100%
Wyoming	'		Formal Policy	150%

Appendix E States Indexing Nonresident Tuition to Cost of Instruction

(a) Not less than marginal cost of instruction.

(b) Not less than average cost per student from appropriated funds.

(c) Must cover the student's share of cost plus local sponsor's share of cost (i.e., 66%-70%).

(d) Must cover 100% of cost of instruction; statutory language refers to this as a goal.



Appendix F States Setting Nonresident Tuition as a Multiple of Resident Tuition

	Four-yea	ar Sector	Two-year Sector		
State	Authority	Authority Multiple of Resident Rate		Multiple of Resident Rate	
Alabama	State Statute	2 times	State Statute	2 times	
Alaska	Formal Policy	2-3 times (a)	Formal Policy	2 times	
Connecticut	Formal & Inst. Policies	2.7-3 times	Formal & Inst. Policies	3 times	
Hawaii	State Statute	2 times (b)	State Statute	2 times (b)	
Kentucky	Formal Policy	3 times	Formal Policy	3 times	
Maine	Formal Policy	2.4-2.8 times			
Missouri	Formal Policy	2 times			
North Dakota	Formal Policy	2.67 times	Formal Policy	2.67 times	
Utah	Formal Policy	3.5 times	Formal Policy	3.5 times	

(a) Nonresident tuition is set at three times the rate for resident undergraduates and two times the rate for resident graduates.

(b) Not less than two times undergraduate resident tuition at the research I campus of the University of Hawaii system.

Four-year Sector **Two-year Sector** State Tuition "Good Tuition "Good Neighbor" Reciprocity Neighbor'' Reciprocity Alabama Х Х (a) (a) Alaska Х Х Х Х Х Х Х Х Arizona Х Х Arkansas Х California х Х Colorado X (b) X (b) Connecticut Delaware Х Florida Georgia X (c) X (<u>c)</u> Hawaii Idaho Х Х Х Illinois Indiana Х Х Х Х X (d) lowa х Х Kansas Х Х Kentucky Louisiana Х Maine Maryland Х Х Х Х Massachusetts Michigan* Х Х Minnesota Mississippi Х X (e) X (e) Missouri Х Х Montana X (a) (f) Nebraska Х X (a) (f) Х Х Х Х Х Nevada Х Х Х Х New Hampshire New Jersey Х Х Х Х New Mexico New York (SUNY) North Carolina Х North Dakota Х Х Х X (f) Х Х X (f) Ohio Х Oklahoma Х Х Х Х Oregon Pennsylvania* Х Rhode Island Х Х Х Х Х South Carolina Х South Dakota х х Tennessee

Appendix G Tuition Reciprocity/"Good Neighbor" Agreements by State

SHEEO State Tuition and Fee Policies: 1996-97



34

Appendix G Tuition Reciprocity/"Good Neighbor" Agreements by State

	Four-yea	ar Sector	Two-year Sector		
State	Tuition Reciprocity	"Good Neighbor"	Tuition Reciprocity	''Good Neighbo <u>r''</u>	
Texas	X	X	X	X	
Utah	X		X		
Vermont State Col.	X	X	X	Х	
Vermont Univ.					
Virginia	X	X	X	X	
Washington	X		X		
West Virginia	X	X	X	X	
Wisconsin	X		X		
Wyoming			x		

(a) No formal governmental agreements.

(b) Certain programs only (NEBHE Apple Program).

(c) Nonresident tuition differential is waived for students from Pacific Island jurisdictions without 4-year higher education institutions; there are also institutional agreements with some Asian institutions

(d) A reciprocal tuition agreement is allowed between a 2-year institution and an educational institution in another state if the agreement is approved by the State Board for Community Colleges.

0

(e) Institutions have some individual policies.

(f) Agreements are limited to particular campuses and residents of particular counties.

*Did not respond to survey.



.

Appendix H-1 Tuition Differentials by Category by State Four-year Sector

State	Resident/ Nonresident	Upper/Lower Division	Undergrad/ Graduate	Program	Credit/ Noncredit	Tuition Surcharge
Alabama	X		X			
Alaska	X	x	X	Х		
Arizona	x			Х		
Arkansas	x		Х			
California	x			X (a)		
Colorado	x	x	Х	X	X	
Connecticut	x		Х	X (a)	X	
Delaware	X				X	
Florida	X		X	X	X	
Georgia	X		Х	X	X	
Hawaii	x	5 X	X	X (b)	X	
Idaho	X		Х	X	X	
Illinois	X		X	Х	x	
Indiana	x		X	X	_	
Iowa	X		X	X (c)		
Kansas	X		Х	X		
Kentucky	X		Х	X (a)		
Louisiana	X		Х		X	
Maine	X					
Maryland	X		X			
Massachusetts	X		X		X	
Michigan*						
Minnesota	X	X	X	X	X	X
Mississippi	X					X (d)
Missouri	X	X	X	X (a)	X	
Montana	X	X	X	X	X	X
Nebraska	X		X	X (a)	X	
Nevada	X	[X			
New Hampshire	X		X	X		
New Jersey	X		X	X	<u> </u>	
New Mexico	X		x	X (e)		
New York (SUNY)	X		X	X (a)		
North Carolina	X					X
North Dakota	X		x	Х	<u>x</u>	
Ohio	X		X		X	
Oklahoma	x	x	X			
Oregon	<u>x</u>	<u> </u>	x	X	x	X
Pennsylvania*	<u> </u>					
Rhode Island	<u>x</u>	ļ	x	X		X
South Carolina	X	ļ	x			
South Dakota	X		<u>x</u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	ļ
Tennessee	X		X	<u> </u>		



41

Appendix H-1 Tuition Differentials by Category by State Four-year Sector

State	Resident/ Nonresident	Upper/Lower Division	Undergrad/ Graduate	Program	Credit/ Noncredit	Tuition Surcharge
Texas	X		X		X	X (f)
Utah	X		Х	Х	X	x
Vermont State Col.	X			X	X	
Vermont Univ.	X			X		
Virginia	X		Х	X (a)		
Washington	X		X	X (a)		X
West Virginia	X		X	Х		
Wisconsin	x		Х	X (a)	X	
Wyoming	X		Х	X (g)	X	

(a) Professional schools.

(b) Only law and medicine.

(c) MBA, pharmacy, Pharm.D., veterinary medicine, law, dentistry, and medicine.

(d) Above 20 hours per semester.

(e) Law, medicine, pharmacy.

(f) For graduate students exceeding 130 hours, the Board may charge the nonresident tuition rate.

(g) Law and pharmacy, and some off-campus degree programs.

*Did not respond to survey.



State	Resident/ Nonresident	Program	Credit/ Noncredit	Tuition Surcharge
Alabama	X			
Alaska	X	X		
Arizona	X		X	
Arkansas	X			_
California	X		X	
Colorado	X		X	
Connecticut	X		X	
Delaware	X		X	
Florida	X	X	x	
Georgia	X		x	
Hawaii	x		x	
Idaho	X		x	x
Illinois	X	Х	x	
Indiana	X			<u> </u>
Iowa	X	X (a)	x	
Kansas	x	X		
Kentucky	X			1
Louisiana	X		x	
Maine	X			
Maryland			x	
Massachusetts			X	
Michigan*				
Minnesota	x	Х	x	x —
Mississippi		A	<u>x</u>	
Missouri			X	<u> </u>
Montana			X	<u>}</u>
Nebraska			X	·
Nevada				
New Hampshire		X	ł	
New Jersey	x		X (b)	
New Mexico	x			<u> </u>
New York (SUNY)	X		<u> </u>	}
North Carolina			X	1
North Dakota	X	X	X	<u> </u>
Ohio		Δ	X	<u>├</u>
Oklahoma				<u> </u>
Oregon (b)			<u> </u>	X
Pennsylvania*				
Rhode Island	x			X
South Carolina				
South Dakota	<u> ^ </u>			
	x			
Tennessee				

Appendix H-2 Tuition Differentials by Category by State Two-year Sector



Appendix H-2 Tuition Differentials by Category by State Two-year Sector

State	Resident/ Nonresident	Program	Credit/ Noncredit	Tuition Surcharge
Texas	X		X	
Utah	X	Х	X	Х
Vermont State Col.			X	
Virginia	X	X		
Washington	X			X
West Virginia	X			
Wisconsin	X		X	
Wyoming	X			

(a) Selected adult education programs.

(b) Varies by college.

*Did not respond to survey.

SHEEO State Tuition and Fee Policies: 1996-97

.....



Appendix I-1 Control and Retention of Tuition Revenue by State Four-year Sector

A-Tuition revenues are retained at the state level under the control of a governing or coordinating board. B-Tuition revenues are controlled and retained by an institution or campus.

C-Tuition revenues are deposited in separate state accounts from which all funds must be appropriated prior to expenditure for higher education purposes.

D-Tuition revenues are deposited in the state general funds, with their return to higher education only inferred.

E-Other.

State	Α	В	C	D	E
Alabama		Х			
Alaska		X (a)			
Arizona					X (b)
Arkansas		X			
California		X (c)	X (d)		
Colorado					X (e)
Connecticut					X (e)
Delaware		X			
Florida	x			_	
Georgia		X			
Hawaii			X		
Idaho			X		
Illinois		X			
Indiana		X			
Iowa		x			
Kansas					X (f)
Kentucky		X			
Louisiana		X			
Maine					
Maryland		X			
Massachusetts				Х	
Michigan*					
Minnesota	x				
Mississippi		X			
Missouri		X			
Montana					X (g)
Nebraska		X (h)			
Nevada					X (i)
New Hampshire		X	1		
New Jersey		X			
New Mexico		X			
New York (SUNY)			X		
North Carolina					X (j)
North Dakota			X		
Ohio		X			

40



Appendix I-1 Control and Retention of Tuition Revenue by State Four-year Sector

A-Tuition revenues are retained at the state level under the control of a governing or coordinating board. B-Tuition revenues are controlled and retained by an institution or campus.

C-Tuition revenues are deposited in separate state accounts from which all funds must be appropriated prior to expenditure for higher education purposes.

D-Tuition revenues are deposited in the state general funds, with their return to higher education only inferred.

E-Other.

State	A	В	С	D	E
Oklahoma		X			
Oregon	X				
Pennsylvania*					
Rhode Island	X				
South Carolina		X			
South Dakota	Х				
Tennessee		X			
Texas			X		
Utah			X		
Vermont State Col.		X			
Vermont Univ.		X			
Virginia			X		
Washington		X			
West Virginia					X (k)
Wisconsin			X		
Wyoming		X			

(a) Legislative approval is needed to receive/expend tuition revenue. Allocation of tuition is determined by the Board of Regents, but generally is retained and controlled by the institutions generating the revenue.

(b) Some tuition revenue is retained locally for financial aid, debt service, and other programs; the rest is deposited with the state but not appropriated and used to fund the "state operating expenditure authority."

(c) University of California System.

(d) California State University System.

(e) Tuition revenue is controlled and retained by individual governing boards (constituent units).

(f) Statement C is true; the research institutions can change tuition revenue due to enrollment changes.

(g) Tuition revenue is collected and deposited into each campus's unique state appropriated treasury account.

(h) Governing boards also have authority to reallocate tuition revenue among campuses.

(i) Tuition revenue is collected and deposited by institutions; campuses must have state authority to collect/ expend within budgets. If revenue exceeds an authorized amount, additional authority must be received.

(j) Tuition revenue is deposited into the institutional general fund as direct offsets to appropriations.

(k) Tuition revenue is controlled and retained by the campus for the most part. Tuition revenue needed for debt service payments and Central Office support is retained by the Central Office.

*Did not respond to survey.

Appendix I-2 Control and Retention of Tuition Revenue by State Two-year Sector

A-Tuition revenues are retained at the state level under the control of a governing or coordinating board.

B-Tuition revenues are controlled and retained by an institution or campus.

C-Tuition revenues are deposited in separate state accounts from which all funds must be appropriated prior to expenditure for higher education purposes.

D-Tuition revenues are deposited in the state general funds, with their return to higher education only inferred.

E-Other.

State	Α	B	С	D	<u> </u>
Alabama		X			
Alaska		X (a)			
Arizona		X			
Arkansas		X			
California		X			
Colorado					X (b)
Connecticut					X (b)
Delaware		X			
Florida		X			
Georgia		X			
Hawaii			X		
Idaho		X			
Illinois		X			
Indiana		X			
Iowa		X			
Kansas		X			
Kentucky		X			
Louisiana		X			
Maine					
Maryland		X			
Massachusetts				Х	
Michigan*					
Minnesota	X				
Mississippi		X			
Missouri		X			
Montana					X (c)
Nebraska		X			
Nevada					X (d)
New Hampshire		X			
New Jersey		X			
New Mexico		X			
New York (SUNY)		X (e)	X (f)		
North Carolina	x				
North Dakota			X		
Ohio		X			

42



Appendix I-2 Control and Retention of Tuition Revenue by State Two-year Sector

A-Tuition revenues are retained at the state level under the control of a governing or coordinating board.

B-Tuition revenues are controlled and retained by an institution or campus.

C-Tuition revenues are deposited in separate state accounts from which all funds must be appropriated prior to expenditure for higher education purposes.

D-Tuition revenues are deposited in the state general funds, with their return to higher education only inferred.

E-Other.

State	Α	В	С	D	E
Oklahoma		X			
Oregon		X			
Pennsylvania*	_				
Rhode Island	Х				
South Carolina		X			
South Dakota					
Tennessee		X			
Texas	Х				
Utah			X		
Vermont State Col.		X			
Virginia		Τ	X		
Washington		X			
West Virginia					X (g)
Wisconsin			X		
Wyoming		X			

- (a) Prior approval is needed from the legislature to receive and expend tuition revenue. Allocation of tuition is determined by the Board of Regents, but generally tuition revenue is retained and controlled by the institutions generating the revenue.
- (b) Tuition revenue is controlled and retained by individual governing boards (constituent units).
- (c) Tuition revenue is collected and deposited into each campus's unique state appropriated treasury account.
- (d) Tuition revenue is collected and deposited by an institution; the campus must receive state authority to collect and expend within its state-supported budget. If revenue exceeds the authorized amount, additional authority must be received.
- (e) Two-year community colleges.
- (f) Two-year technical colleges.
- (g) Tuition revenue is controlled and retained by the campus for the most part. Tuition revenue needed for debt service payments and Central Office support is retained by the Central Office.

*Did not respond to survey.



Appendix J-1 Financial Assistance by Program and Authority by State Four-year Sector

S = Program offered under state statute.

F = Program offered through formal policy, but not in statute.

I = Program offered at discretion of institution.

State	Need-based grants	Merit-based scholarships	Loan forgiveness	State work study	State-funded guarantee loans	Taylor/ Lang
Alabama (a)	F					
Alaska		S			S	
Arizona	S	F	S			
Arkansas	S	S	S			
California	S	I	S	S		
Colorado	S	S		S		
Connecticut	S (b)	Ι		S (c)		
Delaware	S&I	F	S	I		
Florida	S	S	S	S		Ι
Georgia (d)	S	S	S		S	
Hawaii	F	F			S	
Idaho	S	S	S	S		
Illinois (e)	S	S	S	S		
Indiana	S&I	S&I	S	S		S
Iowa	S,F,&I	S,F,&I	S	S	S	
Kansas	S	S	S	S		
Kentucky	S	I	S	S	S	
Louisiana	S	S	S	F	S	S
Maine						
Maryland	S&I	S&I		Ι		_
Massachusetts	S	F		Ι		
Michigan*						
Minnesota	S	S&I	S	S		
Mississippi	S	S	S	Ι		
Missouri	S	S				
Montana	F			F		
Nebraska	S&I	S&I	S	F		
Nevada	S	F		F		
New Hampshire	S&I	Ι		I	I	
New Jersey	S	S	S		S	
New Mexico	F	S	S	S	S	
New York (SUNY)	S	S	S (f)			
North Carolina	F	F	F	F		
North Dakota	S	S&I				
Ohio	S	S				Ι
Oklahoma	S	S				S
Oregon	S	F		F	F	Ι
Pennsylvania*						

44

SHEEO State Tuition and Fee Policies: 1996-97



Appendix J-1 Financial Assistance by Program and Authority by State Four-year Sector

S = Program offered under state statute.

F = Program offered through formal policy, but not in statute.

I = Program offered at discretion of institution.

State	Need-based grants	Merit-based scholarships		State work study	State-funded guarantee loans	Taylor/ Lang
Rhode Island	F	I				
South Carolina	S	S&I	S&I	Ι		
South Dakota	S	S				
Tennessee	S	S	S			
Texas	S	Ι	S	S	S	
Utah	I	F				
Vermont State Col.	S	Ι	F	F	F	
Vermont Univ.						
Virginia	S	S&I	S			S
Washington	S	S	S	S		
West Virginia	S	I	S			
Wisconsin	S	S	S			
Wyoming		F&I	S			

(a) Another program in statute supports classroom teachers to learn technical skills.

(b) The Scholastic Achievement Grant Program has a merit screen.

(c) Statute allows use of state grant funds for work study.

(d) Tuition-equalization grants for private college attendance is also in statute.

(e) College Savings Bond Program and Illinois College Accounts Network are also in statute.

(f) For physicians practicing in certain areas of the state.

*Did not respond to survey.



Appendix J-2 Financial Assistance by Program and Authority by State Two-year Sector

S = Program offered under state statute.

F = Program offered through formal policy, but not in statute.

1 = Program offered at discretion of institution.

State	Need-based grants	Merit-based scholarships	Loan forgiveness	State work study	State-funded guarantee loans	Taylor/ Lang
Alabama	F				S	
Alaska		S				
Arizona						
Arkansas	S	S	S			
California	S	I		S		
Colorado	S	S		S		
Connecticut	S			S (a)		
Delaware	S&I	I	S			
Florida	S	S	S	S		I
Georgia (b)	S	S	S		S	
Hawaii	F	F			S	
Idaho	S	I	S	S		
Illinois (c)	S&I	S&I	S	S		
Indiana	S	S	S	S		S
Iowa	S	S	S	S	S	
Kansas	I	I				
Kentucky	S	Ι	S	S	S	
Louisiana	S	S	S	F	S	S
Maine						
Maryland	S&I	S&I		I		
Massachusetts	S	F		I		
Michigan*						
Minnesota	S	S&I	S	S		
Mississippi	S	S				
Missouri	S	S				
Montana	F			F		
Nebraska	S&I			F		
Nevada	S	F		F		
New Hampshire	S&I	I		I	I	
New Jersey	S	S			S	
New Mexico	F	S	S	S	S	
New York (SUNY)	S	S	S			
North Carolina	I	F&I	1	I		
North Dakota	S	S&I				
Ohio	S	S				Ι
Oklahoma	S	S				S
Oregon (d)						
Pennsylvania*						

46

SHEEO State Tuition and Fee Policies: 1996-97



Appendix J-2 Financial Assistance by Program and Authority by State Two-year Sector

S = Program offered under state statute.

F = Program offered through formal policy, but not in statute.

I = Program offered at discretion of institution.

State	Need-based grants	Merit-based scholarships	Loan forgiveness	State work study	State-funded guarantee loans	Taylor/ Lang
Rhode Island	F					
South Carolina	S					
South Dakota						
Tennessee	S	S	S			
Texas	S	I	S	S	S	
Utah	Ι	F				
Vermont State Col.	S	Ι	F	F	F	
Virginia	S	S	S			S
Washington	S	S	S	S		
West Virginia	S	Ι	S			
Wisconsin	S	S	S			
Wyoming	Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι	F	

(a) Statute allows use of state grant funds for work study.

(b) Tuition-equalization grant for private college attendance is also in statute.

(c) College Savings Bond Program and Illinois College Accounts Network are also in statute.

(d) Varies by college.

*Did not respond to survey.

SHEEO State Tuition and Fee Policies: 1996-97



Appendix K-1 Tuition Waivers by Type and Authority by State Four-year Sector

S = Waiver offered under state statute.

F = Waiver offered through formal policy, but not in state statute.

I = Waiver offered at discretion of institution.

State	Graduate Assistants	Student Athletes	Faculty/ Staff	Faculty/Staff Dependents	State Employees	State Empl. Dependents
Alabama	I		I	I		
Alaska	I	I	F	F		
Arizona	F	F	F	F		
Arkansas	I	I	I	I		
California	F&S (a)	Ι	S	F		
Colorado			F	I		
Connecticut	S	Ι	I	I		
Delaware	I	Ι	I	1		
Florida	I	Ι	S		S	
Georgia	F		F			
Hawaii (b)	F	F	F	F		
Idaho	F	F	F			
Illinois (c)	S	S	S	S	S	S
Indiana	I	I	I	I	I	I
lowa (d)						
Kansas	S		S	S		
Kentucky	I	I	I	I	F	i
Louisiana	F	S	F	F		
Maine	F	F	F	F		
Maryland	I	Ι	S&I	I	I	1
Massachusetts	F	F	S	S	S	
Michigan*						
Minnesota	I	I	I	I		
Mississippi		F	F	F	F	F
Missouri		I	I	I	I	
Montana (e)	F	F	F			
Nebraska	I	I	I	I		
Nevada	F&I	S&F	F	F		
New Hampshire	F	F	F	F		
New Jersey	I	I	I	I	I	
New Mexico	S	S	I	I	I	I
New York (SUNY)	F	1	F			
North Carolina	s	S	S			
North Dakota (f)	F		F			
Ohio	I	I	1	Ι		
Oklahoma	F	I	I	I		
Oregon	F		F			
Pennsylvania*						

48



Appendix K-1 Tuition Waivers by Type and Authority by State Four-year Sector

S = Waiver offered under state statute.

F = Waiver offered through formal policy, but not in state statute.

I = Waiver offered at discretion of institution.

State	Graduate Assistants	Student Athletes	Faculty/ Staff	Faculty/Staff Dependents	State Employees	State Empl. Dependents
Rhode Island (g)	F	F	F	F	F	F
South Carolina	1	S	S		S	
South Dakota	F				S	
Tennessee			S	S	S	S
Texas	S		S	S		
Utah	I	I	Ι	1		
Vermont State Col.			1	1		
Vermont Univ.			1	Ι		
Virginia	S	S	1	1		
Washington	S	S (h)	S			
West Virginia	F	F	1	1		
Wisconsin	S	S				
Wyoming	1	1	1	Ι	1	

(a) Authorized in statute for California State University and by formal policy for the University of California.

(b) There are also formal policies for the East-West Center grantees, Native Hawaiians, students from certain Pacific/Asian jurisdictions, and institutional agreements.

(c) Waivers in statute for General Assembly, ROTC, Gender Equity, Intercollegiate athletics, MIA/POW descendants.

(d) Full or partial scholarships, rather than waivers, are offered in a number of categories.

(e) Formal waiver policies for American Indians, high school honor students, National Merit Scholars.

(f) Formal policy waiver for the student member of the Board of Higher Education.

(g) Tuition waivers in statute for unemployed and citizens over 60 who meet need-based eligibility requirements. (h) To achieve gender equity.

*Did not respond to survey.

Appendix K-1 (continued) Tuition Waivers by Type and Authority by State Four-year Sector

S = Waiver offered under state statute.

F = Waiver offered through formal policy, but not in state statute.

I = Waiver offered at discretion of institution.

State	Deceased Fire & Police Dep.	Public Service Participants	Military	Senior Citizens	Need-based	Merit-based
Alabama	S		S&I			I
Alaska			S	F	I	I
Arizona	F				F&I	F&I
Arkansas	S		S	S		
California	S			S		
Colorado				I		
Connecticut			S	S	I	I _
Delaware	S		Ι	I	1	I
Florida	S		S	S		I
Georgia			F	F		
Hawaii			S		F	F
Idaho				F		
Illinois	S	S	S	S	S	S
Indiana	S	Ι	S	Ι	I	I
Iowa						
Kansas	S		S	F		
Kentucky	S		S	S	Ι	Ι
Louisiana	S		S	S	S&F	S&F
Maine	S		S	F	F	F
Maryland	I	I	S&I	S	Ι	I
Massachusetts	S		F	F	S	F
Michigan*				_		
Minnesota	S	Ι		I	I	I
Mississippi	S					S
Missouri	S		S	I	I	<u>I</u>
Montana	F		F	F	I	1
Nebraska		I	S	I	I	I
Nevada			S&F	F&I	I	I
New Hampshire						
New Jersey	S	Ι	S	S	I	I
New Mexico	S		S	S		
New York (SUNY)	F		S			
North Carolina			S	S		
North Dakota	S		S			
Ohio	S			S		
Oklahoma	S		F	F		F
Oregon				F	F	
Pennsylvania*						

50

SHEEO State Tuition and Fee Policies: 1996-97



Appendix K-1 (continued) Tuition Waivers by Type and Authority by State Four-year Sector

S = Waiver offered under state statute.

F = Waiver offered through formal policy, but not in state statute.

I = Waiver offered at discretion of institution.

State	Deceased Fire & Police Dep.	Public Service Participants	Military	Senior Citizens	Need-based	Merit-based
Rhode Island	S		S	S	F	I
South Carolina	S		I	S	S	S
South Dakota	S		S	F		
Tennessee	S		S	S		
Texas	S		S	I		Ι
Utah				Ι	I	I
Vermont State Col.				I	I	I
Vermont Univ.				I _		
Virginia	S		I	S	S	S
Washington	S&I		S&I	S&I	S&I	
West Virginia	S		S		F	F
Wisconsin	S				S	S
Wyoming			Ι	I		I

*Did not respond to survey.

SHEEO State Tuition and Fee Policies: 1996-97

ERIC Pruit Bact Providers by ERIC

Appendix K-2 Tuition Waivers by Type and Authority by State Two-year Sector

S = Waiver offered under state statute.

F = Waiver offered through formal policy, but not in state statute.

I = Waiver offered at discretion of institution.

Staff	Student	Faculty/Staff	Faculty/Staff	State	State Empl.
	Athletes		Dependents	Employees	Dependents
Alabama	F				
Alaska	I	<u> </u>	F		
Arizona		F	F		
Arkansas	I	<u> </u>	I		
California		F	F		
Colorado		F	I	F	
Connecticut		I	I		
Delaware	I	I	I		
Florida (a)	I	I	I	Ι	I
Georgia		F			
Hawaii (b)		F	F		
Idaho	I	I	Ι		
Illinois (c)	I	I	S	Ι	I
Indiana	I	I	I	Ι	I
Iowa					
Kansas	Ι	I	I	I	I
Kentucky		I	Ι	F	
Louisiana	S	F	F		
Maine					
Maryland	I	S&I	I	I	I
Massachusetts	F	S	S	S	
Michigan*					
Minnesota	I	I	I		
Mississippi					
Missouri		I	I	Ī	
Montana (d)		F			
Nebraska		I	Ι		
Nevada	S&I	F	F		
New Hampshire		F	F		
New Jersey	I	I	Ι	I	
New Mexico		I	I	I	I
New York (SUNY)	I	F			
North Carolina		F			
North Dakota (e)		F			
Ohio	<u>I</u>	I	I		
Oklahoma	I	I	I		Ì
Oregon (f)					1
Pennsylvania*			-		1
Rhode Island (g)	F	F	F	F	F

SHEEO State Tuition and Fee Policies: 1996-97



57

Appendix K-2 Tuition Waivers by Type and Authority by State Two-year Sector

S = Waiver offered under state statute.

F = Waiver offered through formal policy, but not in state statute.

I = Waiver offered at discretion of institution.

Staff	Student Athletes	Faculty/Staff	Faculty/Staff Dependents	State Employees	State Empl. Dependents
South Carolina	S	S		S	
South Dakota					
Tennessee			S	S	S
Texas		S	S		
Utah	I	Ι	I		
Vermont State Col.		I	Ι		
Virginia		Ι	Ι		
Washington		S	S&I	S&I	
West Virginia		Ι	Ι		
Wisconsin					
Wyoming					

(a) Other waivers in statute are dual enrollment, foster care, apprenticeship, Project Independence, Homeless.

(b) There are also formal policies for the East-West Center grantees, Native Hawaiians, students from certain Pacific/Asian jurisdictions, and institutional agreements.

(c) Waivers in statute for ROTC and MIA/POW descendants.

(d) Formal waivers for American Indians, high school honor students, National Merit Scholars.

(e) Formal policy waiver for the student member of the Board of Higher Education.

(f) Varies by college.

(g) Tuition waiver in statute for unemployed and citizens over 60 who meet need-based eligibility requirements.

*Did not respond to survey.



Appendix K-2 (continued) Tuition Waivers by Type and Authority by State Two-year Sector

S = Waiver offered under state statute.

F = Waiver offered through formal policy, but not in state statute.

1 = Waiver offered at discretion of institution.

State	Deceased Fire & Police Dep.	Public Service Participants	Military	Senior Citizens	Need-based	Merit-based
Alabama	S		I	I		
Alaska	5		S	F	I	
Arizona	S		5	1	1	1
Arkansas	S		S	S		
California	S			5	S	
Colorado				I	5	
Connecticut			S	S	I	I
Delaware	S			S S	I	I
Florida	S	I			I	I
		1	<u>3</u> F	F		1
Georgia Hawaii			F S	I`	F	F
Idaho	<u> </u>		3	I	г	I
	S	I	S	S	I	I
Illinois	S		<u>s</u>		I	I
Indiana		I	3	1	1	
Iowa			T	T		
Kansas	S S		I S	I S	I I	I
Kentucky			<u> </u>	S S	S&F	
Louisiana	S		3	5	S&F	<u> 5&F</u>
Maine			0.01			I
Maryland	I	I	<u>S&I</u> F	S	I S	F
Massachusetts	S		F	F	S	F
Michigan*						
Minnesota	<u>s</u>	Ι		I	I	I
Mississippi				T		
Missouri	S		<u>S</u>	I	I	<u> </u>
Montana	F		F	F		
Nebraska			S	I	I	I
Nevada			S&F	F&I	<u> </u>	I
New Hampshire						
New Jersey	S	I	S	S	I	I
New Mexico	<u> </u>		S	S		
New York (SUNY)	F		S			
North Carolina			S	S		
North Dakota	<u> </u>		S		ļ	
Ohio	S			S	ļ	
Oklahoma	S		F	F	L	F
Oregon						
Pennsylvania*						

54



Appendix K-2 (continued) Tuition Waivers by Type and Authority by State Two-year Sector

S = *Waiver offered under state statute.*

F = Waiver offered through formal policy, but not in state statute.

I = *Waiver offered at discretion of institution.*

State	Deceased Fire & Police Dep.	Public Service Participants	Military	Senior Citizens	Need-based	Merit-based
Rhode Island	S		S	S	F	
South Carolina	S		I	S	S	S
South Dakota						
Tennessee	S		S	S	-	
Texas	S		S	I		Ι
Utah				I	I	l
Vermont State Col.		_		I	I	I
Virginia	S		I	S	S	S
Washington	S&I		S&I	S&I	S&I	
West Virginia	S		S		F	F
Wisconsin	S				S	S
Wyoming			S	Ι	I	I

*Did not respond to survey.

SHEEO State Tuition and Fee Policies: 1996-97



Appendix L-1 Roles and Authority to Set Fees by State Four-year Sector

M = Authority to set mandatory fees.

D = Authority to set designated fees.

State	Legislature			Governing/Coord Agency		tem 1g Board		itional/ Board
	M	D	M	D	M	D	М	D
Alabama					X	X	Х	X
Alaska					X	X		
Arizona					X	X		
Arkansas					X	X	x	X
California	X (a)				X (b)	X (c)		
Colorado					X	Х	x	X
Connecticut					X	X		
Delaware							Х	X
Florida	X				X	X		
Georgia					X	X		
Hawaii					X	X		X
Idaho					X		Х	X
Illinois							Х	X
Indiana							Х	X
Iowa					X	X		
Kansas					X	X		
Kentucky							Х	X
Louisiana					X	X		
Maine								
Maryland					X	X	Х	X
Massachusetts							Х	X
Michigan*								
Minnesota					X	X	X	X
Mississippi					X	X		
Missouri					X	X	Х	X
Montana			X	X				
Nebraska					X	X	Х	X
Nevada					X	X		
New Hampshire					X	X		
New Jersey							Х	X
New Mexico							X	X
New York (SUNY)					X	X	Х	X
North Carolina					X			X
North Dakota					X	X		
Ohio							Х	X
Oklahoma	X	Х	X	X				X
Oregon	X				X	X		X
Pennsylvania*								

SHEEO State Tuition and Fee Policies: 1996-97



61

Appendix L-1 Roles and Authority to Set Fees by State Four-year Sector

M = Authority to set mandatory fees.

D = Authority to set designated fees.

State	Legislature		Governing/Coord Agency		System Governing Board		Institutional/ Local Board	
	Μ	D	Μ	D	Μ	D	Μ	D
Rhode Island					X	X		
South Carolina							Х	X
South Dakota					X	X		
Tennessee					X	X		
Texas	Х	X			X	X		
Utah			X]		X		
Vermont State Col.					X	X		
Vermont Univ.							X	X
Virginia							x	X
Washington							X	X
West Virginia					X	X		
Wisconsin					X	X	x	X
Wyoming		[Х	X

(a) California State University.

(b) University of California.

(c) California State University and University of California.

*Did not respond to survey.

SHEEO State Tuition and Fee Policies: 1996-97

.



Appendix L-2 Roles and Authority to Set Fees by State Two-year Sector

M = Authority to set mandatory fees. D = Authority to set designated fees.

State	Legislature		Governing/ Coord Agency		System Governing Board		Institutional/ Local Board	
	M	D	м	D	M	D	М	D
Alabama					X	X	X	X
Alaska					X	Х		
Arizona			X	X				
Arkansas					X	X	Х	X
California	Х	X						
Colorado					X	X	X	Х
Connecticut					X	X		
Delaware							X	Х
Florida	X		X	X			X	X
Georgia					X	X		
Hawaii					X	X		X
Idaho							Χ	Х
Illinois							X	Х
Indiana							Х	X
Iowa							Х	Х
Kansas								Х
Kentucky							X	Х
Louisiana					X	X		
Maine								
Maryland				T	X	X	X	Х
Massachusetts							Х	Х
Michigan*								
Minnesota					X	X	Х	X
Mississippi							Х	X
Missouri							Х	X
Montana			X _	X				
Nebraska							Χ	X
Nevada					X	X		
New Hampshire					X	X		
New Jersey							X	X
New Mexico							Х	X
New York (SUNY)					X	X	Х	X
North Carolina	X				X			X
North Dakota					X	X		
Ohio							X	X
Oklahoma	X	X	X	X				X
Oregon							X	X
Pennsylvania*								

58

SHEEO State Tuition and Fee Policies: 1996-97



Appendix L-2 Roles and Authority to Set Fees by State Two-year Sector

M = Authority to set mandatory fees.

D = Authority to set designated fees.

State	Legislature		Governing/ Coord Agency		System Governing Board		Institutional/ Local Board	
	Μ	D	М	D	М	D	Μ	D
Rhode Island					X	X		
South Carolina					X	X		
South Dakota								
Tennessee					X	X		
Texas	Х	X			X	X	Х	X
Utah			X			X		
Vermont State Col.					X	X		
Virginia							Х	X
Washington							Х	Х
West Virginia					X	X		
Wisconsin					X	X	Х	X
Wyoming							Х	X

*Did not respond to survey.

SHEEO State Tuition and Fee Policies: 1996-97



64

Appendix M-1 Technology Fees by State Four-year Sector

State	State-level Policy			Distance Learning Fee
Alabama		X unknown		unknown
Alaska				
Arizona		x	varies	varies
Arkansas		x	\$2-\$4.10/credit hour	
			\$10-\$49.20/term	
California				
Colorado		X	\$20-\$100/term	
Connecticut		X	\$120/term	
Delaware				
Florida				
Georgia	X	X	\$10/term	
Hawaii				
Idaho		X	\$1.50-\$2.50/credit hour	
			\$13-\$28/term	
Illinois		X		\$20-35/term
Indiana		X	\$0-\$100/term	
Iowa	X	X	\$92-\$320/academic year	
Kansas				
Kentucky		X	\$10-\$40/term	
Louisiana				
Maryland		X	unknown	unknown
Massachusetts		X		
Michigan*				
Minnesota		X	\$0-\$900/year (a) \$.50-\$2.60/qrt. credit (b)	
Mississippi		x	\$20/term	
Missouri		X		
Montana		X	varies	
Nebraska		x		
Nevada		X (c)		(c)
New Hampshire		X	\$82-136/term	
New Jersey		x		
New Mexico		Х		varies
New York (SUNY)		x	\$0-\$4/credit hour \$0-\$50/term	
North Carolina	x —	x	\$14-\$107/term	
North Dakota	X	x	\$2.08-\$39.58/credit hour	
	<u> </u>	x	\$50-\$475/term (d)	
Ohio	x	$-\frac{X}{X}$	\$1-\$8/credit hour	
Oklahoma			\$24-\$50/term	
Oregon	<u> </u>		\$24-\$30/lem	
Pennsylvania*		<u> </u>		

SHEEO State Tuition and Fee Policies: 1996-97



Appendix M-1 Technology Fees by State Four-year Sector

State	State-level Policy	Institution Authority	On-campus Fee	Distance Learning Fee
Rhode Island		Х	\$3/credit hour \$30/term	
South Carolina		Х		
South Dakota		Х	(e)	\$69/credit hour
Tennessee		Х	\$0-\$30/credit hour	
Texas		X (f)		
Utah			\$5.49-\$159.90/term	
Vermont State Col.		Х	\$50/term	
Vermont Univ.				
Virginia		Х	\$6/credit hour \$50-\$148/academic year	
Washington	X	Х	\$120/academic year	
West Virginia		X	varies from \$5/credit hour to \$20/semester	
Wisconsin	X	X	\$21-\$33/semester	
Wyoming		Х	\$2/term	

(a) University of Minnesota institutions; the \$900 is mandatory at the University of Minnesota-Crookston.

(b) Minnesota State Universities.

(c) Campuses may charge fees up to \$50 without Board approval for any purpose including technology or distance learning if the campus deems fee necessary to deliver instruction.

- (d) Valley City State University students pay \$475/term for a laptop computer and other computer services.
- (e) Technology fees are a component of the university support fee for 5 of the 6 universities in the system; SD School of Mines assesses a technology fee of \$6/credit hour.
- (f) Technology fees are charged as incidental fees.

*Did not respond to survey.

SHEEO State Tuition and Fee Policies: 1996-97



Appendix M-2 Technology Fees by State Two-year Sector

State	StateState-levelInstitutionOn-campus FeePolicyAuthority		Distance Learning Fee	
Alabama		X	unknown	unknown
Alaska				
Arizona				
Arkansas		x	\$2/credit hour \$10-\$24/term	
California				
Colorado		X	\$72-\$135/term (a)	\$5-\$35/three-hour course
Connecticut		X	approx. \$4/credit hour	
Delaware				
Florida				
Georgia	X	X	\$10/term	
Hawaii				
Idaho		x	\$2/credit hour \$20/term	
Illinois		X		
Indiana		X		
Iowa			\$0.75-\$3.00/credit hour	
Kansas		X	Up to \$12/credit hour	
Kentucky		X	\$40/term	
Louisiana				
Maine				
Maryland		X	unknown	unknown
Massachusetts		X		
Michigan*				
Minnesota		<u> </u>	\$0-\$3/quarter credit (b)	
Mississippi				
Missouri		X		
Montana		X		
Nebraska		X		
Nevada		X (c)		(c)
New Hampshire		X	\$82-\$136/term	
New Jersey		<u> </u>		
New Mexico		X		varies
New York (SUNY)		<u> </u>	(d)	
North Carolina				
North Dakota	x	X	\$2-\$4.17/credit hour \$24-\$50/term	
Ohio		X		
Oklahoma	x	X	\$1-\$5/credit hour	
Oregon		X	varies	
Pennsylvania*				
Rhode Island		X	\$3/credit hour \$30/term	

SHEEO State Tuition and Fee Policies: 1996-97



Appendix M-2 Technology Fees by State Two-year Sector

State	State-level Policy	Institution Authority	On-campus Fee	Distance Learning Fee
South Carolina		Х		
South Dakota				
Tennessee		x	\$0-\$30/term	
Texas		X (e)		
Utah			\$9-\$18.90/term	
Vermont State Col.		Х	\$1/credit hour	
Virginia		x	\$1/credit hour \$30/academic year	
Washington				
West Virginia		X	varies from \$5/credit hour to \$20/semester	
Wisconsin	X	x	\$18/semester	
Wyoming		x	\$7/credit hour \$100/term	

(a) Local district colleges.

(b) Minnesota Technical Colleges.

(c) Campuses may charge fees up to \$50 without Board approval for any purpose including technology or distance learning if the campus deems fee necessary to deliver instruction.

(d) Some institutions have a mandatory computer fee; others charge on a per course basis where applicable.

(e) Technology fees are charged as incidental fees.

*Did not respond to survey.



Appendix N States with College Savings Plans

State	Status								
Alabama	Wallace-Folsom Prepaid College Tuition Trust Fund Act established Prepaid Affordable Tuition program in 1989; in operation since 1990.								
Alaska	Advance College Tuition program established in April 1991; in operation since fall 1991.								
Arkansas	Arkansas College Savings Bond Program implemented in 1991.								
California	A savings bond program approved in 1991.								
Colorado	Colorado Student Obligation Bond Authority approved by legislature during 1996 session; will be implemented in July 1997.								
Delaware	Family Account for College Tomorrow (FACT), a savings fund program, will be implemented in 1997-98.								
Florida	Florida Prepaid Postsecondary Education Expense Program enacted in June 1987; in operation since fall 1988.								
Illinois	Illinois College Savings Bond Program implemented in 1988.								
Indiana	Legislation passed in 1995 for the Save Indiana Program; implemented in 1996.								
Kentucky	The legislature established the Kentucky Educational Savings Plan Trust in 1988.								
Louisiana	Student Tuition Assistance and Revenue Trust Program ("START" Saving Program) enacted in 1995 and will be implemented in 1997.								
Massachusetts	Tuition savings plan authorized by the legislature in 1988 and includes both public and private institutions.								
Michigan	Michigan Education Trust Program enacted in 1986; contracts first sold in 1988-90 and then suspended until 1995, pending IRS ruling.								
Mississippi	Mississippi Prepaid Affordable College Tuition Plan approved during 1996 legislative session; will be implemented through the State Treasurer's office.								
Nevada	Zero coupon bonds for Nevadans implemented in 1993.								
New Hampshire	New Hampshire College Savers implemented in 1990.								
Ohio	Ohio Tuition Trust Authority created in 1989; sale of tuition credits implemented at end of year.								
Oklahoma	Approved by legislature in 1988, but never implemented pending IRS tax ruling; legislature may revisit during 1997 session.								
Rhode Island	Beginning in 1997, a tuition savings plan will be offered; an earlier prepayment tuition plan discontinued two years ago.								
Pennsylvania	Pennsylvania Tuition Account Program approved in 1992 and in operation since fall 1993.								
Tennessee	Legislature approved prepayment tuition plan in 1996; Baccalaureate Education System Trust (BEST) will begin selling tuition credits in March 1997.								
Texas	Texas Tomorrow Fund, a prepaid tuition plan, created in 1994.								
Utah	Utah Education Savings Plan Trust authorized by the 1996 legislature; operational since November 1996.								
Virginia	Legislation passed in January 1994 to establish the Virginia Higher Education Tuition Trust Fund; contracts first sold in fall 1996.								
Washington	Washington advanced tuition savings plan approved by legislature in 1996; will be implemented in 1997.								
Wisconsin	EDVEST authorized by the legislature during 1996; tuition credits will be sold in spring 1997.								



69

Appendix N States with College Savings Plans

State	Status
	Advanced Payment of Higher Education Costs program established in 1987 with contracts first sold in summer 1987; program suspended in 1995 due to lack of participation.

Sources: Special Report on State College Savings Plans, College Savings Plan Network, 1996; SHEEO 1996-97 Tuition, Fees, and Financial Assistance Survey.

Note: There are basically three types of state college savings plans:

Prepaid Tuition Plans. Commonly referred to as prepaid or guaranteed tuition plans, these programs provide a "pay now, learn later" approach to college financing by allowing parents and grandparents to pay in advance for educational benefits that a designated beneficiary will use in the future. The programs charge roughly current prices for either full tuition coverage or units of future tuition costs through a one-time lump sum or monthly payments and guarantee tuition at any participating college or university. Some plans also include dormitory fees. The revenues from purchasers' payments are pooled, creating a state trust that makes long-range investments so that the earnings meet or exceed the inflationary rise of college tuition.

Savings Plan Trusts. These plans allow participants to save money in a special college savings account on behalf of a designated beneficiary. The programs guarantee a minimum rate of return, and the interest earned is exempt from state, but not federal income taxes. When withdrawn, the funds can be used at any college in the country.

State College Savings Bonds. These programs sell general obligation, zero coupon, and municipal bonds for children's college education. These bonds, similar to U.S. Savings Bonds, are sold at a discount from their face value and pay no interest until maturity. Because the bonds are state debt instruments, the interest earned is exempt from state and federal taxes. Although the bonds are marketed as a way to save for college, there is no requirement that the funds be spent on college expenses and purchasers do not have to name a designated beneficiary.



Appendix O Survey Respondents (In State Order)

Edward P. Rutledge Chief Finance Officer Commission on Higher Education P.O. Box 30200 Montgomery, AL 36130-2000 334-242-2104 Fax: 334-242-0268 achexr01@asnmail.asc.edu

Marylou D. Burton Director, Statewide Budget Development University of Alaska 202 Butrovich Building Fairbanks, AK 99775-5000 907-474-7593 Fax: 907-474-6491 snmdb@orca.alaska

Mary P. McKeown Associate Executive Director for Financial Affairs Arizona Board of Regents 2020 North Central Avenue, #230 Phoenix, AZ 85004 602-229-2520 Fax: 602-229-2555 iadmpm@asuvm.inre.asu.edu

Thomas Saad Associate Executive Director, Business & Finance State Community College Board 3225 North Central Avenue, #1220 Phoenix, AZ 85012 602-255-4037 Fax: 602-279-3464

Barbara R. Patterson Finance Manager Arkansas Department of Higher Education 114 East Capitol Little Rock, AR 72201-3818 501-371-2023 Fax: 501-371-2002 barbarap@adhe.edu

Karl Engelbach Senior Fiscal & Policy Analyst California Postsecondary Education Commission 1303 J Street, #500 Sacramento, CA 95814-2938 916-322-7331 Fax: 916-327-4417 engelbac@cpec.ca.gov Sheila Seery Assistant Financial Analyst Colorado Commission on Higher Education 1300 Broadway, 2nd Floor Denver, CO 80203 303-866-2723 Fax: 303-860-9750 seery s@cche.state.co.us

Mary K. Johnson Chief Fiscal Officer Connecticut Department of Higher Education 61 Woodland Street Hartford, CT 06105-2391 860-566-4058 Fax: 860-566-7865 mkjohnson@commnet.edu

Marilyn Quinn Executive Director Delaware Higher Education Commission 820 French Street, 4th Floor Wilmington, DE 19801 302-577-3240 Fax: 302-577-6765 mquinn@state.de.us

Pat Dallet Assistant Executive Director Florida Postsecondary Education Planning Commission Florida Education Center Tallahassee, FL 32399 904-488-7894 Fax: 904-922-5388 dalletp@mail.firn.edu

Joseph J. Szutz Asst Vice Chancellor for Planning & Policy Analysis Board of Regents University System of Georgia 244 Washington Street SW Atlanta, GA 30334 404-656-2213 Fax: 404-657-4130 jszutz@mail.regents.peachnet.edu

Colleen O. Sathre Vice President for Planning & Policy University of Hawaii System 2444 Dole Street Bachman Hall 110 Honolulu, HI 96822 808-956-7075 Fax: 808-956-9119 csathre@hawaii.edu



Keith Hasselquist Fiscal Officer State Board of Education Len B. Jordan Building, Room 307 650 West State Street Boise, ID 83720 208-334-2270 Fax: 208-334-2632 khasselq@osbe.state.id.us

Mark Wilcockson Associate Director, Fiscal Affairs Illinois Board of Higher Education 4 West Old Capitol Plaza, Room 500 Springfield, IL 62701-1287 217-782-3632 Fax: 217-782-8548 wilcocks@uis.edu

Debra Smitley Associate Director, Public Affairs Illinois Board of Higher Education 4 West Old Capitol Plaza, Room 500 Springfield, IL 62701-1287 217-782-3632 Fax: 217-782-8548 smitley@uis.edu

Robert W. Ruble Director, Financial Affairs Indiana Commission for Higher Education 101 West Ohio Street, #550 Indianapolis, IN 46204-1909 317-464-4400 Fax: 317-464-4410 bob@che.state.in.us

Joan Racki Associate Director, Business & Finance Iowa Board of Regents Old Historical Building East 12th & Grand Des Moines, IA 50319 515-281-3934 Fax: 515-281-6420 jracki@iastate.edu

Marvin Burris Dir of Governmental Affairs/Assoc Dir of Budget Kansas Board of Regents 700 SW Harrison, #1410 Topeka, KS 66603-3760 913-296-3423 Fax: 913-296-0983 marv@kbor.state.ks.us Merlyne Hines-Starr Director of Community Colleges Kansas State Department of Education 120 SE Tenth Avenue Topeka, KS 66612-1182 913-296-3048 Fax: 913-296-3523 mhines@smtpgw.ksbe.state.ks.us

Kenneth Walker Deputy Exec Dir for Finance, Facilities & Data Management Kentucky Council on Higher Education 1024 Capital Center Drive, #320 Frankfort, KY 40601-8204 502-573-1555 Fax: 502-573-1535 kwalker@mail.state.ky.us

Larry Tremblay Assistant Commissioner for Planning and Research Louisiana Board of Regents 150 Third Street, #129 Baton Rouge, LA 70801-1389 504-342-4253 Fax: 504-342-9318 tremblay@regents.state.la.us

B. Russell Smith Chief Financial Officer & Treasurer University of Maine System 107 Maine Avenue Bangor, ME 04401-1805 207-973-3205 Fax: 207-973-3296

Paula Fitzwater Finance Analyst Maryland Higher Education Commission 16 Francis Street The Jeffrey Building Annapolis, MD 21401 410-974-2971 Fax: 410-974-5994 pfitzwat@mhec.state.md.us

Dale M. Hamel Senior Associate for Policy Development Board of Higher Education One Ashburton Place Boston, MA 02108-1696 617-727-7785 Fax: 617-727-6397 dhamel@mecn.mass.edu



Jack Rayburn Data & Programs Division Minnesota Higher Education Services Office 400 Capitol Square 550 Cedar Street St. Paul, MN 55101 612-296-9703 Fax: 612-297-8880 rayburn@heso.state.mn.us

Jean M. Bush Budget Director Bd of Trustees of State Institutions of Higher Learning 3825 Ridgewood Road Jackson, MS 39211 601-982-6176 Fax: 601-982-6129 jean@ihl.state.ms.us

Larry L. Day Director of Research & Planning State Board for Community & Junior Colleges 3825 Ridgewood Road Jackson, MS 39211 601-982-6307 Fax: 601-982-6363

Eldon Wallace Associate Commissioner for Fiscal Affairs Coordinating Board for Higher Education 3515 Amazonas Drive Jefferson City, MO 65109-5717 573-751-2361 Fax: 573-751-6635 wallace?cbhe400@admin.mocbhe.gov

Stuart Knapp Interim Deputy Commissioner Montana University System Office of the Commissioner of Higher Education 2500 Broadway Helena, MT 59620-3101 406-444-0312 Fax: 406-444-1469 sknapp@oche.montana.edu

Laurie Neils Director of Budget and Accounting Montana University System Office of the Commissioner of Higher Education 2500 Broadway Helena, MT 59620-3101 406-444-0312 Fax: 406-444-1469 Ineils@oche.montana.edu Christine E. Denicola Assistant Fiscal Officer/Policy Analyst Coordinating Commission for Postsecondary Education 140 North 8th Street, # 300 P.O. Box 95005 Lincoln, NE 68509-5005 402-471-6506 Fax: 402-471-2886 denicola@ccpe.state.ne.us

Karen Steinberg Deputy to the Chancellor for Planning & Policy University & Community College System of Nevada 2601 Enterprise Road Reno, NV 89512 702-784-4901 Fax: 702-784-1127 steinber@scs.unr.edu

Robert K. Toutkoushian Director of Policy Analysis University System of New Hampshire Dunlap Center Durham, NH 03824-3545 603-868-1800 ext 166 Fax: 603-868-2756 r_toutkoush@usnh.unh.edu

Robert K. Goertz Director, Fiscal Policy New Jersey Commission on Higher Education 20 West State Street, CN 542 Trenton, NJ 08625-0542 609-292-4310 Fax: 609-292-7225 bgoertz@njche.che.state.nj.us

Lillian Montoya-Rael Deputy Director Financial Aid and Student Services Commission on Higher Education 1068 Cerrillos Road Sante Fe, NM 87501-4295 505-827-7383 Fax: 505-827-7392 lillian@che.state.nm.us

Tommy Annas Assistant Provost State University of New York State University Plaza, #303N Albany, NY 12246 518-443-5639 Fax: 518-443-5632 annast@sysadm.suny.edu



A. Troy Barksdale Assoc VP of Program Assessment and Public Service UNC - General Administration P.O. Box 2688 Chapel Hill, ND 27515-2688 919-962-4554 Fax: 919-962-4316 tbarks@ga.unc.edu

Keith Brown Director of Planning & Research North Carolina Community College System 200 West Jones Raleigh, NC 27603-1379 919-733-7051 ext 728 Fax: 919-733-0680 brown@nccs.cc.nc.us

Cathy McDonald Director of Finance North Dakota University System State Capitol Building 600 East Boulevard Avenue Bismarck, ND 58505-0230 701-328-4111 Fax: 701-328-2961 cmcdonal@plains.nodak.edu

Matthew V. Filipic Vice Chancellor Ohio Board of Regents 30 East Broad Street, 36th Floor Columbus, OH 43266-0417 614-752-9474 Fax: 614-466-5866 mfilipic@summit.bor.ohio.gov

Maryanne Maletz Associate Vice Chancellor Oklahoma State Regents for Higher Education State Capitol Complex 500 Education Building Oklahoma City, OK 73105-4500 405-524-9153 Fax: 405-524-9230 mmaletz@osrhe.edu

Gary Christensen Assistant Vice Chancellor for Student Services Office of Academic Affairs Oregon State System of Higher Education P. O. Box 3175 Eugene, OR 97403-0175 503-346-5729 Fax: 503-346-5764 christeg@osshe.edu Tom Hughes Financial Analyst Office of Community College Services 255 Capitol Street, NE Salem, OR 97310-1341 503-378-8648 ext 366 Fax: 503-378-8434 tom.hughes@state.or.us

Richard A. Mumford Associate Commissioner for Finance & Management Rhode Island Department of Education Board of Governors for Higher Education 301 Promenade Street Providence, RI 02908-5720 401-277-2667 Fax: 401-277-6111 rmumford@uriacc.uri.edu

Michael L. Brown Coordinator of Financial Analysis South Carolina Commission on Higher Education 1333 Main Street, #200 Columbia, SC 29201 803-737-2144 Fax: 803-737-2297 mbrown@che400.state.sc.us

Travis Reindl Director of Information & Institutional Research South Dakota Board of Regents 207 East Capitol Avenue Pierre, SD 57501-3159 605-773-3455 Fax: 605-773-5320 travisr@bor.state.sd.us

David Thurman Director of Higher Education Budgeting Tennessee Higher Education Commission 404 James Robertson Parkway Parkway Towers, #1900 Nashville, TN 37243-0830 615-741-7578 Fax: 615-741-6230 dthurman2@mail.state.tn.us

Sharon W. Cobb Assistant Commissioner for Student Services Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board P.O. Box 12788, Capitol Station 7745 Chevy Chase Drive Austin, TX 78711-2788 512-427-6465 Fax: 512-427-6420 crowderaa@thecb.state.tx.us



Whitney Pugh Budget Analyst Utah Board of Regents 3 Triad Center #550 355 West North Temple Salt Lake City, UT 84180-1205 801-321-7133 Fax: 801-321-7199 wpugh@utahsbr.edu

Fred A. Curran Director, Institutional Studies The University of Vermont Waterman Building Burlington, VT 05405 802-656-0693 Fax: 802-656-1363 isisfred@uvmvm.uvm.edu

Bob Nicol System Director of Finance Vermont State Colleges System P.O. Box 359 Waterbury, VT 05676 802-241-2520 Fax: 802-241-3363 nicolb@quark.vsc.edu

Dan Hix Senior Finance Coordinator Virginia State Council of Higher Education James Monroe Building 101 North Fourteenth Street Richmond, VA 23219 804-225-3188 Fax: 804-225-2604 hix@schev.edu

Steve Merritt Manager of Financial Aid Virginia State Council of Higher Education James Monroe Building 101 North Fourteenth Street Richmond, VA 23219 804-225-2623 Fax: 804-225-2604 merritt@schev.edu

Dan Keller Associate Director, Finance Washington Higher Education Coordinating Board 917 Lakeridge Way P.O. Box 43430 Olympia, WA 98504-3430 360-753-7860 Fax: 360-753-7808 dank@hecb.wa.com Thomas G. Sonnleitner Director of Finance and Facilities State College & University Systems of West Virginia 1018 Kanawha Blvd., East, #700 Charleston, WV 25301 304-558-0278 Fax: 304-559-0259 sonnleitner@scusco.wvnet.edu

Nathan Peters Assistant Vice President for Budget Planning University of Wisconsin System 1700 Van Hise Hall 1220 Linden Drive Madison, WI 53706 608-262-6715 Fax: 608-265-3175 npeterg@ccmail.uwsa.edu

Ken Griffin Associate Provost University of Wyoming Box 3434 Laramie, WY 82071 307-766-6476 Fax: 307-766-2606 griffin@uwyo.edu

Bill Lovejoy Institutional Research & Planning Officer Wyoming Community College Commission 2020 Carey Avenue, 8th Floor Cheyenne, WY 82002 307-777-6293 Fax: 307-777-6567 blovejoy@antelope.wcc.edu





U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION Office of Educational Research and Improvement (OERI) Educational Resources Information Center (ERIC)



NOTICE

REPRODUCTION BASIS



This document is covered by a signed "Reproduction Release (Blanket)" form (on file within the ERIC system), encompassing all or classes of documents from its source organization and, therefore, does not require a "Specific Document" Release form.

This document is Federally-funded, or carries its own permission to reproduce, or is otherwise in the public domain and, therefore, may be reproduced by ERIC without a signed Reproduction Release form (either "Specific Document" or "Blanket").

